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CORPORATE INFORMATION
ARE B
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COMPANY’S WEBSITE
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
1 75 4 B

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
F A A

Turnover EE

Profit before taxation B 71 A0 ' A

Income tax s
Profit for the year F R F

Profit attributable to: JEAE @ Al

Equity Shareholders of AR ARIEZEEHA A
the Company

Non-controlling interests  3F 12 % A% B8 4% 2%

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

EEREE

Current assets TEBE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Current liabilities REAE
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Net assets EEFE

Total equity attributable to: ZNA BIEZSHEA A
equity Shareholders of EIG AR
the Company

Non-controlling Interests ~ JEFEAR AR SR 25

Total equity BiEm

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IRIHBERBIRA R

2012

—E—_F
RMB’000
AR®T T

614,399

26,956
(7,498)

19,458

2012
—E-_F
RMB’000
AR TR

382,969
1,156,501

445,652
551,010

542,808

542,808

542,808

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLFE

2011 2010 2009 2008
—E——% ZZT-ZF ZTTHhF ZTITN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARBTRE AR®ETRT ARETR
720,412 654,315 396,229 424,072
37,922 43,056 21,567 38,570
(1,882) (2,141) — —
36,040 40,915 21,567 38,570
36,040 40,915 21,567 33,445
— — — 5,125
36,040 40,915 21,567 38,570

As at 31 December

+=ZA=+—H

2011 2010 2009 2008
—T——% —ZE-TF —TTHhFE ZTTN\F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AR®TT ARETR
315,898 392,820 316,360 228,956
836,647 832,128 869,579 901,323
287,816 460,598 354,306 348,619
333,344 272,139 370,744 328,884
531,385 492,211 460,889 452,776
531,385 492,211 460,889 361,510
— — — 91,266
531,385 492,211 460,889 452,776




CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EERME

Dear Shareholders,

In 2012, the annual production volume of our three
power plants of the Group amounted to 927,017 Mwh,
representing a decrease of 14.79% as compared to
last year. In addition, the Group will complete the major
construction work of its new clean energy project, Anji
thermal power cogeneration project, in the second
quarter.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the turnover
of the Group was approximately RMB614,399,000,
representing a decrease of 14.72% as compared to
last year. The profit attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company was approximately RMB19,458,000,
representing a decrease of 46.01% as compared to last
year. The change in net profit was primarily due to the
reduction of power generation plans of the two natural
gas power plants of the Group by Zhejiang Economic
and Information Technology Commission after taking
into account of the excessive production volume as
compared with the growth in power consumption
according to the economic development of Zhejiang
province in 2012.

The PRC government implemented policies to intervene
in the domestic economy to control the overheated
economy and high inflation in 2011. Coupled with the
sluggish economics of Europe and the US, the PRC
experienced an economic downturn. As one of the most
affluent regions in the PRC, the GDP of Zhejiang province
for 2012 amounted to RMB3,460.6 billion with a growth
of 8%, decreased from 9% in the previous year. As a
result, the total power consumption growth in Zhejiang
province slowed down to 3% from 10.6% in the previous
year.

However, as the PRC government encouraged
ecological and environmental protection for the
establishment of a beautiful China, its concerns about
environmental protection continued to increase. Stringent
air quality standard has been implemented in core cities
including Beijing, Shanghai and Hangzhou and a series
of policies governing air pollution have been launched
since 2011. It is expected that industries consuming
natural gas will be indirectly benefitted from these
policies.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ESERHTE

Looking forward, we will focus on developing “clean” and
“sustainable” power. In China, over 70% of the energy
consumed is produced by coal, which is one of the
major causes for the excessive fine particles (PM2.5).
The Zhejiang provincial government has recognized such
issue. During the Zhejiang provincial government meeting
in October 2012, it specified that coal-fired production
was the major cause for the high level of fine particles
(PM2.5), which showed that the government has
recognized the importance of environmental protection
and the necessity for the reduction of the usage of coal.

As the Company focuses on the production of natural
gas power, which is cleaner with less emission and
higher thermal conversion efficiency as compared with
coal-fired power, and with the support of its extensive
experience in development and operation over the years
and competent management team, the Company is
expected to benefit from the increasing awareness of
environmental protection in the society.

In addition to the construction of the Anji cogeneration
project, the Company plans to develop other clean
energy projects in order to further expand its project
reserves for the current stage of development and long
term development and enlarge its market share in the
clean energy supply market in China.

| would like to extend my heartfelt gratitude to all
directors, the management team and staff for their
dedication, as well as all our shareholders and partners
for their support and contribution to the safe production
and sound operation of our three power plants as well
as the construction of the new projects of the Group
in the previous year despite the unfavourable external
environment.

The Group is confident and will do its best to achieve
outstanding results in the future.

Chai Wei
Chairman of the Board and President

Zhejiang province, China, 22 March 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEEN W N DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

Installed Capacity

The Group is mainly engaged in the construction,
operation and management of natural gas-fired power
plants, and has three wholly-owned gas-fired power
plants in Zhejiang province, namely Zhejiang Amber
De-Neng Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd. (#f
TIRIAEERAREZEEGRAF)  (“De-Neng  Power
Plant”), Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky Natural Gas Power
Generation Co., Ltd. (fMUMNIRIAERRKAREZEETHR L F)
(“Blue Sky Power Plant”) and Zhejiang Amber Jing-Xing
Natural Gas Power Generation Co., Ltd. (#7334 &
KARBEEARMR AR (“Jing-Xing Power Plant”). As at 31
December 2012, the aggregate installed capacity and
attributable installed capacity of the above power plants
was approximately 299MW.

During the period under review, the Group started to
develop a new gas turbine thermal power cogeneration
project (“Anji  Project”) with installed capacity of
approximately 154MW in Anji of Zhejiang province.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

BB & am & o AT

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Production Volume

The production for the year ended 31 December 2012
was 927,017Mwh, representing a decrease of 14.79%
as compared with the corresponding period of last year
(2011: 1,087,889Mwh).

Due to the slowdown of growth in electricity demand in
Zhejiang province in 2012, power purchased by Zhejiang
Electric Power Corporation from the Group dropped as
compared with the corresponding period of last year,
leading to a decrease in the production of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS

BERE N R DM

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Production Volume (Continued)

The Company issued an announcement regarding the
adjustment to the power generation plan and profit
warning on 18 October 2012 to inform its shareholders
and potential investors that the production of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2012 was
expected to decline due to the adjustment. The growth
of electricity demand in Zhejiang province has slowed
down significantly since the beginning of 2012 and
the power consumption and production levels did not
match. In order to coordinate the operation of the
power generation units, maintain the balance between
power consumption and production and facilitate the
smooth peak-loading operation of the natural gas-
fired generation units, certain power plants, including
De-Neng Power Plant and Blue Sky Power Plant of
the Group, were required to adjust their natural gas
generation plans for 2012 from 3,500 hours to 3,100
hours (the “Adjustment”).

Natural Gas Supply

The total natural gas supply for the year ended 31
December 2012 was 217.34 million m?, representing a
decrease of 15.35% as compared with last year (2011:
256.75 million m3).

Fuel Cost

Natural gas is the only source of fuel for the Group’s
power plants. The natural gas price is determined by the
Price Bureau of Zhejiang. The prevailing price of natural
gas is RMB2.41/m? (inclusive of VAT).

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the fuel cost
accounted for 75.44% of the turnover, representing a
decrease of 0.56 percentage point as compared to the
corresponding period of last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEB W&

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

On-grid Tariff

On-grid tariff is determined by the Price Bureau of
Zhejiang province taking into account the types of fuel,
cost structure and operating profit of similar power plants
within the provincial grid. The prevailing on-grid tariff is
RMBO0.80Kwh (inclusive of VAT).

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Highlight

The turnover of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012 was approximately RMB614,399,000

(2011: RMB720,412,000), representing a decrease of
14.72% as compared with last year.

The profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2012 was
approximately RMB19,458,000 (2011: RMB36,040,000),
representing a decrease of 46.01% as compared with
2011. Basic earnings per share amounted to RMB0.05
for the year ended 31 December 2012 (2011: RMBO0.09).

The significant decrease in the profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was mainly attributable
to: (i) the decrease in production in 2012 as compared
with the corresponding period of last year; and (i) the
increase in the income tax expenses.

Turnover

Turnover of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012 amounted to approximately RMB614,399,000,
representing a decrease of 14.72% as compared with
RMB720,412,000 for last year. The decrease in turnover
was primarily due to the decrease in production of the
Group as compared with last year.

Operating Costs

The operating costs of the Group for 2012 were
RMB549,765,000, representing a decrease of 14.48%
as compared with RMB642,861,000 for 2011. The
decrease of operating costs was in line with the
decrease in turnover.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Income Tax

All power plants of the Group were entitled to full
exemption from PRC income tax for two years from the
first profitable year of operation and a 50% reduction of
the applicable PRC income tax rates for the following
three years. According to the relevant regulations of the
State Administration of Taxation, the power plants of the
Group, being foreign-owned enterprises, are entitled to a
corporate income tax credit of up to 40% of the costs of
PRC-manufactured equipment purchased by the plants.

The “two exemptions and three halved” income tax
relief policy was lifted on 31 December 2011. De-Neng
Power Plant and Blue Sky Power Plant were no longer
entitled to tax relief from 31 December 2011 and Jing-
Xing Power Plant was no longer entitled to tax relief from
31 December 2012. The PRC enterprise income tax of
plants operated by the Group, except Jing-Xing Power
Plant which continues to enjoy certain tax exemption, is
provided for and paid at a rate of 25% since 1 January
2012. The PRC income tax provided for the year ended
31 December 2012 amounted to RMB10,497,000.

Pursuant to the Tax Law, 10% withholding tax is levied
on foreign investors in respect of dividend distributions
arising from profits of foreign invested enterprises earned
after 1 January 2008, while the applicable tax rate for
foreign investors registered in Hong Kong is 5% provided
they meet certain criteria. As at 31 December 2012,
deferred tax liabilities of RMB4,390,000 were recognized
accordingly.

No provision of income tax was made for the members

of the Group outside of the PRC as the Group had no
assessable profits generated outside the PRC.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEB W&

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Profit Attributable to Equity Shareholders of the
Company

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the profit
attributable to equity shareholders of the Company was
RMB19,458,000 (2011: RMB36,040,000), representing a
decrease of RMB16,582,000, or approximately 46.01%,
as compared with last year.

The Company issued an announcement regarding the
adjustment to the power generation plan and profit
warning on 18 October 2012 to inform the shareholders
and potential investors that the net profit of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2012 was expected
to be significantly lower than that for the year ended 31
December 2011.

The significant decrease in the net profit in 2012 was
mainly due to: (i) the decrease in production in 2012 as
compared with the corresponding period of last year as
a result of the significant drop in electricity purchased by
Zhejiang Electric Power Corporation from the Group as
compared with the corresponding period of last year due
to the slow growth in the electricity demand in Zhejiang;
and (i) the increase in income tax expenses as compared
with the corresponding period of last year as a result of
the expiration of the preferential tax treatments of two
of the three power plants of the Group on 31 December
2011.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
BEEENWE D

FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Net cash generated from operating activities
was RMB150,396,000 (Net cash wused in 2011:
RMB74,303,000). The significant increase in the net
cash generated from operating activities over last
year was mainly due to the increase of promissory
notes and the decrease of cash used by the Group
for the payment of fuel costs during the year. The
aging of the Group’s receivables is one month and in
general, the tariff revenue generated in the previous
month is received in the current month and used for
the settlement of fuel purchases of the current month.
Credit record of our customers was satisfactory
and there has been no risk of default. Net cash
used in investing activites was RMB376,837,000
(2011: RMB93,846,000) which was mainly used for
the payment of property, plant and equipment. The
construction and equipment procurement costs of Anji
Project were RMB364,271,000. Net cash generated
from financing activities was RMB212,920,000 (2011:
RMB161,977,000), which was primarily due to the
increase of long-term loans of RMB304,000,000 for Anji
Project.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a cash
balance of RMB155,188,000 (31 December 2011:
RMB168,709,000). Approximately RMB69,102,000
was used for financing the new Anji thermal power
cogeneration project, while the remaining balance of
approximately RMB86,086,000 was used for working
capital purpose. Cash was generally placed with banks
as short-term deposit.

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had net current
liabilities of approximately RMB62,683,000 (31
December 2011: net current assets of approximately
RMB28,082,000). The increase in net current liabilities
was primarily due to the use of significant internal fund
for the payment for the construction and equipment
procurement of Anji Project in 2012.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Liquidity and Financial Resources (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors its liquidity positions and
projected liquidity requirements and its compliance with
lending covenants to ensure that it meets its short-
term and long-term liquidity requirements. The Group
maintains long-term satisfactory relationships with the
major banks, and the Directors are confident that the
Group will be able to satisfy all conditions required by its
bank creditors and will have sufficient working capital for
future operations.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis
of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt
divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total
debt (including all loans and borrowings as well as long-
term payables, as shown in the consolidated statement
of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents.
Total capital is calculated as equity attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company, as shown in the
consolidated statement of financial position, plus net
debt. As at 31 December 2012, the gearing ratio was
54.56%, representing an increase of 11.33 percentage
points as compared with 2011 (31 December 2011:
43.23%), which was primarily due to the increase of
long-term loans of RMB304,000,000 for Anji Project.

Foreign Exchange

The Group has placed short-term deposits with
licensed banks in Hong Kong Dollars, which will affect
the Group’s financial conditions as the exchange rate
of Hong Kong Dollars to Renminbi fluctuates. As the
Group’s operating expenses are mainly denominated in
Renminbi and our turnover is also settled in Renminbi,
the Group has not hedged the risks of exchange
rate fluctuations through any forward contracts or
borrowings.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

Contingent Liabilities and Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2012, the
RMB167,328,000 (31 December
RMB389,930,000) of capital commitments relating
to the purchase and construction of property,
plant and equipment contracted but not provided
for in the financial report for the year. The Group
had authorized but not contracted for capital
commitments of RMB186,454,000 (31 December
2011: RMB487,238,000). During the year, the Group
had no major contingent liabilities or off-balance sheet
commitments.

Group had
2011:

Details of the capital commitment of the Group are set
out in note 26 to the financial statements.

PROSPECTS

In the 18th National Congress of the Communist Party
of China, the importance of ecological civilization
construction for the establishment of a Beautiful China
has been highlighted. The objective of ecological
civilization construction is firstly included in the party
constitution as a part of the development plan of China,
focusing on maintaining green, recycling and low-
carbon development. It proves that ecological civilization
construction has become the international major trend
and has raised increasing concern from China.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

In 2013, the expected slowdown in the economic growth
of China brings various uncertainties to the operations
of enterprises. However, the Group believes that the
clean energy industry, including the exploration and use
of natural gas, will still be one of the most promising
industries in the future as the world is highly concerned
about the ecological environment. Natural gas, a fossil
fuel and important transition fuel which is in compliance
with the environment protection standards, is widely
used in Europe and many other developed countries
such as the United States. According to the “12th Five
Year Plan”, China will further optimize the structure of
energy industry, reduce the reliance on coal resources
and increase the proportion of natural gas in primary
energy. The proportion of natural gas in primary energy
is expected to increase from 4.3% in 2011 to 8.3% at
the end of 2015. The Group, being a major clean energy
supplier focusing on natural gas, will likely benefit from
this policy.

The Group is developing a new natural gas-fired
cogeneration project, the Anji Project, which is expected
to be completed by the second quarter of 2013. There
will be an additional installed capacity of approximately
154MW, representing an increase of approximately
51.50%, which will become a new source of income for
the Group.

The National Energy Administration anticipated that the
energy consumption in 2013 will grow with a faster rate
than that in 2012. The total power consumption in China
for 2013 is expected to increase by approximately 6.5%.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

During the period of 12th Five Year Plan, a number of
natural gas pipelines were built in China and the coastal
liquefied natural gas receiving stations realized the
production targets. In addition, the government further
expanded the development of unconventional natural
gas such as shale gas and coal bed methane which
facilitated the gasification in China. The gas supply for
power generation achieved a five-year-compound growth
rate of 25%, and the liquefied natural gas, which has
larger impacts on regions with large power consumption,
increased at the rate of over 60% in 2012.

In response to the above situation, the management will
continue to support and dedicate to the development
of clean energy and is confident in the future
development of the existing power plants and new
projects of the Group. However, the shareholders and
potential investors of the Company shall be reminded
that the first-year operation of the Anji thermal power
cogeneration project, which will commence production in
2013, is subject to various uncertainties and there is no
assurance that whether it will become a new source of
profit growth for the Group in the first year of operation.
Nevertheless, we will continue to create long-term
returns for our shareholders at our best endeavours.
In addition, the Group is well prepared to develop and
invest in new projects in areas such as gas-fired power
generation and cogeneration projects, and carry out
investigation, research and development of clean energy
projects other than natural gas. The Group will further
increase its reserves in projects for current and long term
development, and will expand its market share in the
clean energy supply in the PRC.

The Group will further strengthen and develop its human
resources and the training of talents to create a better
enterprise cultural atmosphere. In addition, the Group
will continue to implement its budget management and
risk control, and upgrade its corporate governance in
order to facilitate its steady growth alongside sustainable
development. Leveraging the core business of clean
energy in the PRC, the Group believes that it will have
remarkable development in the future and will become a
leading clean energy enterprise in China in the long run.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HKDO.015 per share payable to shareholders of
the Company whose names appear on the register of
members on 7 June 2013. The proposed final dividend
will be paid on or around 21 June 2013 following
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

HEALTH AND SAFETY COMPLIANCE

The Group’s power plants have adopted various internal
policies and implemented protective measures to prevent
health and safety hazards. The policies adopted by the
Company are in line with government regulations. There
were no material accidents or suspensions during the
year.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Each of the Group’s power plants has installed a
monitoring system to monitor the emission volume
of sulphur dioxide and nitrogen oxides on a real-time
basis. The emission is inspected regularly to determine
whether the relevant standard has been satisfied before
discharging.

During the power generation process, conventional coal-
fired power plant discharges waste water and emits
air pollutants, such as sulphur dioxide, nitrogen oxides
and fine particles. The Group’s power plants are fuelled
with natural gas which is a cleaner fossil fuel. Unlike
conventional coal-fired power plants, the Group’s power
plants emit significantly less amount of nitrogen oxides
and barely any sulphur dioxide and fine particles. For the
same amount of heat generated, combusting natural gas
releases less than 50% carbon dioxide as compared to
combusting coal.

The Group believes that the environmental protection
system and facilities of our power plants are in full
compliance with the national and local regulations on
environmental protection.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EERENEEABERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

1.

Mr. CHAI Wei

Mr. Chai, aged 42, was appointed as an executive
Director on 8 September 2008. Mr. Chai is also
the Chairman of the Board and the President of
the Company. He is responsible for the overall
business strategy and corporate development
of the Group, sourcing and development of new
projects and maintaining relationship between the
Group and the local government authorities in
which the Group’s power plants are located. Mr.
Chai has over 19 years of experience in corporate
development and management in a variety of
sectors, including energy and public media. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Chai worked in public media
industries. Mr. Chai was the founder of Zhejiang
King lIsland Limited (I &SESERARF]) and
Zhejiang Expressway Advertising Co. (17L& & /E
42 7). He was a director and general manager
ofmwmgmm|mwjmmm(%iﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
R A7) during the period from 1992 to 2003 and
was the vice-chairman and general manager of
Zhejiang Expressway Advertising Co. (/I =& &
/2 7)) during the period from 1998 to 2003. Since
2005, Mr. Chai has been responsible for the overall
management of all our power plants, namely Blue
Sky Power Plant, De-Neng Power Plant and Jing-
Xing Power Plant (collectively “Our Power Plants”).
Mr. Chai has been a director of all the subsidiaries
of the Group, a director of Shanghai Pu-Xing
Energy Limited (L/8EEFeARAF]), formerly
known as Shanghai Pu-Xing Energy Limited (L8
28R BMRAF]) (“Shanghai Pu-Xing”) since 2002,
a director of Xinjiang Wanxiang GPE Technology
Co., Ltd. (BB BEZMAERAA) since
February 2013 and was the general manager of
Shanghai Pu-Xing during the period from 2002 to
December 2008. He is currently the Vice President
of China Energy Association, deputy director of the
editors committee of Zhejiang Economic Magazine
I EM 74 ZE ), and a member of the China
Natural Gas Industry Magazine Council ( {FBEIX
RRITE) HHIEES). Mr. Chai graduated from
Zhejiang Art and Craft School (#;T 4 T ZEiTE4)
majoring in industrial design.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESRSREEAERERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

2.

Mr. PEIl Shao Hua

Mr. Pei, aged 50, was appointed as a non-
executive Director (“NED”) on 1 June 2012. Mr.
Pei has over 25 years of experience in the energy
industry and over 9 years’ experience in senior
management of energy companies. Mr. Pei
served as the deputy general manager of Yunnan
Diandong Power Company Limited (EFEREE
JBAMREEAR) from August 2003 to February
2005, the general manager of Luneng (Malaysia)
Company Limited (B8t (BXREE) BRAF)
from February 2005 to March 2007 and the vice
president of the Beijing Bootes Electric Power
Science and Technology Co., Ltd. from March
2007 to August 2010. Previously, Mr. Pei also
worked in Shandong Electric Power construction
No. 1 Company, Shandong Nuclear Power
Company Limited in Shenzhen, SEPCO Nuclear
Power Construction Group Corporation (LUIEE
NiZBEZREB AR and SEPCO Electric Power
Construction Corporation. Mr. Pei had been the
deputy general manager of the Energy Department
of China Wanxiang Holding Co., Ltd. (FEI&MR
R AR A R]) since August 2010, the director of
Shanghai Pu-Xing, the chairman of Quzhou Pu-Xing
Gas Turbine and Thermal Power Company Limited
(BN E 2R EVE BRR A F]) since January 2013
and the general manager of Xinjiang Wanxiang
Clean Energy Co., Ltd. FrE&m/E2ERERA
7)) since February 2013. Mr. Pei graduated from
Shandong Institute of Technology (LU T Zp53)
majoring in thermal power and engineering with
a bachelor’'s degree of engineering in 1983 and
School of Management at Shandong University
majoring in enterprises management with a
master’s degree in management in May 2005.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

3.

Mr. LI Jin Quan

Mr. Li, aged 44, was appointed as a NED on 15
March 2013. Mr. Li has over 10 years of experience
in corporate operation management. From 1992 to
2004, Mr. Li was in charge of technology research
and operation management of AVIC Qingan Group
Co., LTD. and its subsidiaries and served as
technician, deputy director of the manufacture and
development department and general manager of
the package material branch. From 2004 to 2009,
he was in charge of investment management of
Wanxiang Western Development Co., Ltd. (&[A
FaEfFZE AR A R]) and served as senior project
manager and deputy general manager of the
investment management department. He has
worked at the strategic development department of
China Wanxiang Holding Co., Ltd. (ff B & AiEA A
[R/A1a]) since 2009 and is currently the executive
general manager of that department. Mr. Li is also
a director of Hanchuan CNC Machine Tool Co.,
Ltd. (Z)||BHE#RAZD/AF). Mr. Li obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in engineering from Nanchang
Institute of Aeronautical Technology (R &Mtz T %
E[7) in 1992 and a master’s degree in engineering
from Beihang University (AtRMZEMAKRE) in
2000.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BYFHITESE

4. Mr. TSE Chi Man 4, FEXXE
Mr. Tse, aged 59, was appointed as an MELE O RZZEZNLF A A
independent  non-executive  Director  (“INED”) T+ RHHEZETABYUIERITES - #

on 25 May 2009. Mr. Tse has over 20 years of
experience in finance and business development
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Tse
held various positions in a number of organizations
including Chase Manhattan Asia Limited as a
director, Inchcape Pacific Limited as a mergers
and acquisitions director, Lerado Group Holdings
Limited as an executive director and Dresdner
Kleinwort Benson China Limited as a managing
director. Mr. Tse had worked for Imagi International
Holdings Limited, a company listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the *“Stock
Exchange”) from 1999 to 2008 where he served
as a director since 2004 and chief financial officer
since 2007 overseeing the company’s accounting
and finance, administration and human resources
functions. Mr. Tse was also a member of the
Vocational Training Council Design Institute
Advisory Board. Mr. Tse holds a bachelor’s degree
and a master’s degree in business administration,
both from the University of Texas, Arlington.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

5.

Mr. YAO Xian Guo

Mr. Yao, aged 60, was appointed as an
INED on 25 May 2009. Mr. Yao is the dean,
professor of the College of Public Administration,
Zhejiang University. He is also a member of
The Expert Evaluation Committee of National
Social Science Foundation of China (BEZtt
SRBESERTEMEER), executive vice-
chairman of the China Industrial Economic
Association (FBITZA&LESEE), member of
the Zhejiang Government Advisory Council
(MIEBSEAZE®) and the chairman of the
Zhejiang Public Administration Association  (#
TEAHEIEES) Mr. Yao holds a master's
degree in economics from Fudan University. Mr.
Yao is currently an independent non-executive
director of Wolong Electric Group Co., Ltd., a
company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
and Zhejiang Asia-Pacific Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd.,, a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange. Mr. Yao also served as an independent
non-executive director of Zhejiang Guangsha Co.,
Ltd., Zhejiang Xinhu Venture Investment Co., Ltd.,
Xinhu Zhongbao Co., Ltd. and Zhejiang Southeast
Electric Power Company Limited, all of which are
companies listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange,
and Zhejiang Hailiang Co., Ltd., a company listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
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AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

6.

Mr. YU Wayne W.

Mr. Yu, aged 49, was appointed as an INED on
29 August 2012. Mr. Yu is currently a professor
at the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Before
joining Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1999,
he was an assistant professor of the School of
Business at Queen’s University in Canada. Mr.
Yu holds a bachelor of business administration
degree, a master of arts (Economics) degree,
and a Ph.D. (Finance) degree. In addition, he is a
Chartered Financial Analyst. Mr. Yu is currently an
independent non-executive director of Shenzhen
Gas Corporation Limited, a company listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange. He was an independent
non-executive director of Shenji Group Kunming
Machine Tool Company Limited, a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and on
the Shanghai Stock Exchange, during the period
from June 2005 to June 2011.

Save as disclosed above, each of the Directors
(i) has not held any directorships in the last three
years in any public companies the securities
of which are listed on any securities market in
Hong Kong or overseas; (i) does not have any
relationship  with any other Directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling
Shareholders of the Company; and (i) does
not hold any positions in the Company or other
members of the Group.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEAEREE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. SHEN Jian Ping (Jt#¥), aged 59, is the Vice
President of the Company. Mr. Shen joined the Group
in July 2004. Mr. Shen is responsible for project
development management of the Group. He has over
37 years of experience in the power industry. Mr. Shen
had worked at Hang Zhou Thermal Power Plant (fi/)H 2t
FEMR) as deputy factory manager and at Hang Zhou Xie
Lian Thermoelectricity Co., Ltd. (fi/MiREtEEAR A7)
as general manager. He is a Visiting Professor of Wuhan
Electric Power Technical College (/% /Bl
F) since 2006 and a member of the Zhejiang Engineering
Thermophysics Committee (#1/T4 TI2EYIEEE) since
1995. He graduated from Correspondence College of the
Party School of the Central Committee of C.P.C. (FF 4t
PR ERKIRERT) in 2000, majoring in economics and
Zhejiang University (4TI A% in 2000 majoring in thermal
energy and power engineering.

Mr. ZHENG Xiao Dong (#/NER), aged 41, is the Chief
Engineer of the Company and a director of De-Neng
Power Plant. Mr. Zheng joined the Group in December
2004. Mr. Zheng is responsible for project construction
management of the Group and operation management
of our power plants. He has over 15 years of experience
in the power industry. Before joining the Company, he
worked as the Deputy Chief Engineer at Jiang Su Dong Tai
Thermal Power Plant (T & R & ZV&E%). He graduated from
Hohai University (AT AZY) in 2003, majoring in electrical
engineering and automation.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAl Chun Yu (¥RF), aged 36, is the Company
Secretary of the Company. Mr. Lai is a member of CPA
Australia since 2002 and a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since 2004. He holds a
bachelor’s degree in business of Queensland University
of Technology and has over 13 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and financial management. Mr. Lai
joined the Group in May 2009. Prior to that, Mr. Lai was
the qualified accountant and company secretary of a
PRC-based computer-aided software solution provider.
In addition, he was the financial controller of Qin Jia Yuan
Media Services Company Limited, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange, and had worked for one of the big four
international accounting firms.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report
together with the audited accounts of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the
development, operation and management of power
plants fuelled by natural gas in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2012 are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

Results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2012 are set out in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on page 55.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend
of HK$0.015 per share for the year ended 31 December
2012 to shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members on Friday, 7 June
20183. The proposed final dividend will be paid on
or around 21 June 2013 following approval by the
shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements during the year in the issued
share capital of the Company are set out in note 24 to
the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2012
are set out in note 24 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2012, distributable reserves
(including share premium and retained earnings) of the
Company amounted to approximately RMB96,863,000
(2011: RMB115,499,000).
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of the borrowings of the Group are set out in
note 19 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2012, the donations
made by the Group amounted to RMB82,961 (2011:
RMB50,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND SHARE OPTION
ARRANGEMENT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.
The Company does not currently have any share option
arrangement.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the percentage
of turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer
and its five largest customers was 70.57% and 100%,
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the Group had
only one supplier of natural gas and it attributed to 100%
of the Group’s natural gas purchases.

To the knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors
of the Company or their associates, or any shareholder
holding more than 5% of the issued share capital of
the Company held any interests in any of the above
customers and suppliers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of significant related party transactions entered
into by the Group in the normal course of business
during the reporting period are set out in note 27 to the
financial statements. These transactions constituted
connected transactions of the Company under the
Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) but were exempt
from all the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements set out in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2012 and up to date of this report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAI Wei (Chairman and President)
Mr. HU Xian Wei (resigned on 15 January 2012)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. PEI Shao Hua (appointed on 1 June 2012)

Mr. DING Guang Ping (retired on 1 June 2012)

Mr. FENG Li Min (retired on 1 June 2012)

Mr. GU Jun Yuan (appointed on 1 June 2012
and resigned on 7 January 2013)

Mr. LI Jin Quan (appointed on 15 March 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Shou Lin (retired on 1 June 2012)
Mr. TSE Chi Man

Mr. YAO Xian Guo

Mr. YU Wayne W. (appointed on 29 August 2012)

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s
Articles of Association, the Directors (including non-
executive Directors) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at each annual general meeting. Mr. Chai
Wei and Mr. Tse Chi Man will retire from office at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and they have
decided to offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.
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DIRECTORS (Continued)

Further, according to Article 83(3) of the Articles of
Association, any Director appointed by the Board either
to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election. Thus, Mr. Yu Wayne W. and
Mr. Li Jin Quan who were appointed by the Board as an
INED on 29 August 2012 and a NED on 15 March 2013,
respectively, shall hold office only until the forthcoming
annual general meeting and then be eligible for re-
election thereto.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a term of three years. None of the
Directors has a service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

CHANGES OF DIRECTOR'’S INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
change of Directors’ information since the date of the
2012 Interim Report is as follows:

o Mr. Yao Xian Guo retired as an independent non-
executive director of Xinhu Zhongbao Co., Ltd. with
effect from 29 October 2012; and

o Mr. Chai Wei was appointed as a director of
Xinjiang Wanxiang GPE Technology Co., Ltd. since
3 February 2013.

Saved as disclosed above, the Company is not aware of
any other information which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had
a material interest, either directly or indirectly, subsisted
as at 31 December 2012 or any time during the year.
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INDEPENDENCE OF THE INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has received from each of the INEDs an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, and considers that all the INEDs meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules and are independent in accordance with the
terms of the guidelines.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2012, the interests or short
positions of the Directors in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance) (“SFO”) which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions in which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (“Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were
as follows:
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Number of

shares/underlying

shares held Percentage of

Name of director Nature of interest RS issued share
EExE8B EEME HEERAEE HEBRITREABDE
Mr. Gu Jun Yuan M@ Interest of spouse 2,138,000 (L) 0.52%

BRILR e 4 * o B =5
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS (Continued)

Note:

These shares are held by Ms. Wang Ping. As Ms. Wang Ping is the spouse
of Mr. Gu Jun Yuan, Mr. Gu Jun Yuan is deemed to be interested in the said
shares. Mr. Gu resigned on 7 January 2013.

Save as the above, as at 31 December 2012, none of
the Directors or chief executives of the Company or any
of their associates had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were recorded in
the register required to be kept pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions.

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2012
was the Company, any of its subsidiaries, its holding
company or any of the subsidiaries of the Company’s
holding company a party to any arrangement to enable
the Directors or their associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF FTERRZESZIRAXE
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of AR EMESRKEBTHRAERM B

3
S

the Company, as at 31 December 2012, the following 2"+ -_A=+—H  THAL(K
persons (other than a Director or a chief executive of the RAIZEFXETETHABRIN AR AR
Company) had interests or short positions in the shares MDEMBEARD P IEERIEES RNEEEDFE
or underlying shares of the Company which are required XVEB 2 &k %357 BB M A A 7 # B8 09 1 245 3¢
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions KB HARARRRRBERZ S RBE KO
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which FIBBRFEMNELHMOERIAE -

are recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Number of Percentage of
shares/underlying issued share
shares held (ote 1) capital
Name of Shareholder Nature of interest =R LB RT
BRRER EaME AE B AR 47 B B () REBD K
Amber International Investment Beneficial interest 396,000,000 Mot (L) 95.42%
Co., Ltd. EnEE A 396,000,000 ###2) (1)
(“Amber International”)
HRINEREREGR QA
([BRIERR 1)
GDZ International Limited Interest in a controlled 396,000,000 (L) 95.42%
(“GDZ") trote ) corporation
GDZ International Limited ZEEEER
(rapz)) i
Mr. Lu Wei Ding (“Mr. Lu”) (oed Interest in controlled 396,000,000 (L) 95.42%
BERAEE(ELE])MWED corporations
R EEER
Ms. Li Lij (ote 4 Interest of spouse 396,000,000 (L) 95.42%
P g - (HEe) Bic 18 # 25

O34 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED HRIHEERBRA A
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FRILIRKRZER /ALBERNHER -

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF FTERRZEZRAKB ()
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (Continued)

Notes: Bt aE -

(1) The letter “L” denotes the entity/person’s long position in the shares. (1)

2) Of the 396,000,000 shares, 300,000,000 are issued shares of the 2)

Company, representing approximately 72.29% of the existing issued
share capital of the Company. The balance 96,000,000 shares is
the number of shares to be issued if Amber International, being the
sole bondholder of the convertible bond (“Convertible Bond”) in
the principal amount of HK$124,800,000 issued by the Company,
exercises in full the conversion rights attached to the Convertible
Bond, which is considered interests of Amber International under the
SFO. For the information of the shareholders of the Company, it is
a term of the Convertible Bond that the maximum number of shares
that may be converted is limited to the extent that following such
conversion, the shares held by the public shareholders should not be
less than 25% of the then issued share capital of the Company.

3) These shares are held by Amber International, which is owned as to 3)
90% by GDZ, which in turn is wholly owned by Mr. Lu. Therefore,
GDZ and Mr. Lu are deemed to be interested in these shares. The
remaining 10% of Amber International is owned by DUOU Investment
Co. Ltd, which is wholly owned by Mr. Chai Wei, a director of the

396,000,000 A% A% 1% A7 300,000,000f% f& 15 B A R & E
BT - AR RBEEEBHITRALNT2.29% - B T
96,000,0008% A% {5 1§ A 3R I BIBR (AR A BT A S5
124,800,000/ L2 Al EH ([ @IRES ) 2BR
BEHEBFAANRETENERESMNE 2 ERER
BT BEEHFRAEKRIRARABRATSEE -
BUMAARRESA - RIBEITERESOGR A
BHIBRONESBEBUTIERR : REEER
& RBEREAFROD TEDRARRERFEEITR
RZ225%

ZEROBEHABEEIZE BE4E2EHEAHGDZA
BHRPEKIOO%ER - ALt - GDZR B L LR AE
BZERMDEZ - FABEKRA T10%/#25H AR Al
EFELBEAEEABANEBREERAGIES °

Company.
(4)  Ms. Li Li is the spouse of Mr. Lu and is therefore deemed to be @4 FTBEXLAEALENES BAUEABEBLESEA

interested in the said shares in which Mr. Lu is deemed to be AR MR GERS -

interested.
Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2012, the HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—8 BARKE
Company had not been notified by any other persons FIETEEIN  BARRFA  BECAEAMm
(other than Directors or chief executives of the Company) ALT(RRBEEHEBITHRAERINRAK
who had an interest or a short position in the shares or WEB PR ARRBRMDKEEROPHEEIR
underlying shares of the Company which are required BEES NI EKROIEXVEE2 R EFE3D A
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions AR FEBENERIAR IEBELAR
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which RNAIRBEEFRPERIIEIBHEEFEENE
are recorded in the register required to be kept by the R ERIRE -

Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO as at the
date of this report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2012, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2012, the Group had a total of
330 employees, excluding 7 temporary staffs (31
December 2011: 284, excluding 35 temporary staffs).
The Group determines employees’ remuneration
according to industry practices, financial performance
and employees’ performance. The Group also provides
other fringe benefits such as insurance, medical benefits
and mandatory provident fund contributions with an
aim to retain talents on all levels who will make further
contributions to the Group.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee having regard to the relevant
Director’'s experience, responsibility and the time
devoted to the business of the Group.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting will be held on Friday,
31 May 2013. A notice convening the annual general
meeting had been published and despatched to the
shareholders of the Company in the manner as required
by the Listing Rules.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED IRIHBERBIRA R

BE HEIEOLAQATALHES

B2 T——F+-_A=+—BLEFEE &K
RAIREEAMNBARMERE  HENE
EARRABEMETES ©
BE K &R
NZEBE——F+-A=+—8 A&E@HH
30X EE  TERB7TEHBERKETI(ZE ——
F+-A=1+—H :284% » THIEBZHF
BT) - AEBERBITEEN  MBEENE
BEXRVETEEFMN AEETMESRM
Rig  BEBMNERRESHAREEMBING
A U BEBBRASTERBERTEERS -

ExMomyrMEZE et MEBESRER
BEMBRARNEEBRBEOREIRE

RREBFKE

RRBFAGHKN _T—=FAA=1T—H
(EHR)ET - BRRBFASBEDRLED
RARENTARBELT FARARR -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHRE

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
during the following periods during which no transfers of
shares of the Company will be registered:

i

from Wednesday, 29 May 2013 to Friday, 31 May
2013 (both dates inclusive) for the purpose of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the annual general meeting, all transfers
accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 28 May 2013.

from Thursday, 6 June 2013 to Friday, 7 June
2013 (both dates inclusive) for the purpose of
ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend. In order to establish
entittements to the proposed final dividend, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 5 June 2013.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the public information available to the
Company and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this report, the Company has complied
with the public float requirement as set out in the Listing
Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company’s Audit Committee is composed of all
the INEDs and Mr. Pei Shao Hua, a NED. The Audit
Committee has reviewed the accounting policies and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed the
internal controls and financial reporting matters, including
a review of the audited consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year have been audited
by KPMG who will retire and offer themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Chai Wei
Chairman, Board of Directors

22 March 2013
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board has been adamant in upholding high
standards of corporate governance to maximize the
operational efficiency, corporate values and shareholder
returns. The Company adopted sound governance and
disclosure practices and continued to upgrade internal
control system, strengthen risk control management and
reinforce the corporate governance structure.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions
of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules which was revised and took effect on 1 April 2012,
as well as those of the former CG Code, throughout the
year ended 31 December 2012.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry
by the Company, that they complied with the required
standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 December 2012.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Board Composition

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2012 and up
to the date of this report, the composition of the Board,
by category of Directors, is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHAI Wei (Chairman and President)
Mr. HU Xian Wei (resigned on 15 January 2012)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Composition (Continued)
Non-executive Directors

Mr. PEI Shao Hua (appointed on 1 June 2012)

Mr. DING Guang Ping (retired on 1 June 2012)

Mr. FENG Li Min (retired on 1 June 2012)

Mr. GU Jun Yuan (appointed on 1 June 2012 and
resigned on 7 January 2013)

Mr. Li Jin Quan (appointed on 15 March 2013)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Shou Lin (retired on 1 June 2012)
Mr. TSE Chi Man
Mr. YAO Xian Guo
Mr. YU Wayne W.
(appointed on 29 August 2012)

The Board’s composition demonstrates a balance of core
competence with regard to the business of the Group
so as to provide effective leadership and the required
expertise to the Group. The executive Director and senior
management have extensive management experience in
the gas-fired power generation industry. The biographical
details and experience of the Directors and senior
management are set out on pages 21 to 27 of this report.

There are no financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

Board Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for leadership and control
of the Group and is entrusted with the responsibility
to supervise the overall management of the business,
including establishing and overseeing the Group’s
strategic  development, business plans, financial
objectives, capital investment proposals and assumes
the responsibilities of corporate governance of the
Group. The Board has delegated the authority and
responsibility for implementing its business strategies
and managing the daily operations of the Group’s
businesses to the executive Director and members of
senior management.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Board Meetings

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis
and on an ad hoc basis, as warranted by business
needs. During the year ended 31 December 2012, four
Board meetings, two Audit Committee meetings, one
Nomination Committee meeting and one Remuneration
Committee meeting were convened. Details of
attendance of Board meetings of each of the members
of the Board are set out in “Attendance of Individual
Directors at Meetings” below.

Notices for regular Board meetings are given to each
Director at least 14 days prior to the meeting, whereby
the Directors can put forward their proposed items
into the agenda. The agenda and the relevant Board
papers are then circulated to the Directors 3 days before
the Board meeting in order to enable the Directors to
make informed decisions. For other Board meetings,
reasonable notices are given.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The Company has received an annual confirmation
of independence from each of the INEDs. The
Company is of the view that all the independent non-
executive Directors meet the guidelines for assessing
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers them to be independent.

During the vyear ended 31 December 2012, save
as disclosed below, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three INEDs with one of them
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Following the retirement of one of the INEDs on 1 June
2012, the Company only had two INEDs and was not
in compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules. On
29 August 2012, the Company had appointed Mr. YU
Wayne W. as an INED of the Company and re-complied
with the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Chairman and President

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2012, the
Chairman was Mr. Ding Guang Ping (from 1 January
2012 to 1 June 2012) and Mr. Gu Jun Yuan (from 1
June 2012 to 7 January 2013) and the President of the
Company is Mr. Chai Wei, respectively. The role of the
Chairman is separate from that of the President so as to
delineate their respective areas of responsibility.

The Chairman is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board to formulate overall
strategies and business development directions
for the Group. The President is responsible for the
daily management of the business of the Group,
implementation of the policies, business objectives and
plans set by the Board and is accountable to the Board
for the overall operation of the Group.

Since 10 January 2013, Mr. Chai Wei, the President
of the Company, has also assumed the role of the
Chairman of the Board as a result of the resignation of
Mr. Gu Jun Yuan (the former Chairman of the Board)
which deviates from the code provision A.2.1. Mr.
Chai has over 19 years of experience in corporate
development and management in a variety of sectors,
including energy and public media, and is the most
suitable candidate to serve in the positions of both the
Chairman of the Board and President of the Company.
For the time being, the Company is unable to identify
another suitable person who possesses abilities and
talent better than or equivalent to Mr. Chai to serve in
either of the positions. Given that there is a balanced
Board with five experienced NEDs (including three
INEDs) representing more than half of the Board, the
Board is of the view that there is a strong independent
element on the Board to exercise independent
judgement and provide sufficient check and balance.

The Board will evaluate from time to time the
appropriateness of the dual roles of Chairman and the
President performed by the same individual and ensures
that the arrangement will continue to be in the interests
of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Non-Executive Directors

The term of appointment of all the NEDs and INEDs
of the Company is three years. Under the Company’s
Articles of Association, one-third of all Directors (whether
executive or non-executive) are subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at each annual general
meeting provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at least once every three years.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS

All Directors receive comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction on appointment, so as to ensure understanding
of the business and operations of the Group and
directors’ responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

All Directors are continually updated on developments
in the statutory and regulatory regime, and the business
and market changes to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules
and relevant statutory requirements. Continuing briefings
and professional development for Directors will be
arranged as necessary.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL EECEHEEXERRE S
DEVELOPMENT OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

During the year under review, the Company has provided REBEFERN  ARAERMEEEFREMETE
updates and coordinated training on the Listing Rules Rk AEE EMBRAREERTE G -
and relevant regulatory requirements to all Directors. BIECEE AT  -FTEESFEHAMRAR T
Pursuant to the requirements of the CG Code, all RBHEENIEILE EBEESREHSNEL
Directors should provide their training record to the B  EERNHEEPEEINSIBENOT

Company. According to the training records provided by
the Directors, the training attended by them during the
reporting period is summarized as follows:

Corporate Governance, Regulatory Development

Name of director and Trainings on other relevant topics
EEpgE hEER EERRRAEMEREEEI
Executive Directors
HITESE
Mr. CHAI Wei (President and Chairman) v
LEEE(EHAFEER)
Mr. HU Xian Wei (resigned on 15 January 2012) N/A
HEEEE(R-_ZE——F—A+EB&HMT) i A
Non-executive Directors
HEHITEE
Mr. PEI Shao Hua (appointed on 1 June 2012) v

ELEEFE (R _ZT—Z—F A —BEZMT)
Mr. DING Guang Ping (retired on 1 June 2012)
THRIFRE(R=_ZTE—=—F~A—BEMD)
Mr. FENG Li Min (retired on 1 June 2012)
BYREE(RZZT—ZFA—HBRME)
Mr. GU Jun Yuan (appointed on 1 June 2012 and
resigned on 7 January 2013) v
BRRLIE(R-ZE——F~A—HEZET
WHR=ZFE—=F—AtAET)
Mr. LI Jin Quan (appointed on 15 March 2013) N/A
EZERAE(R-_ZT—=ZF=-ZA+REAEZT) T iE A

Independent non-executive Directors
BYHHTESE

Mr. ZHANG Shou Lin (retired on 1 June 2012)
RFMAEE(R=_ZT—=—FA—RBEM)

Mr. TSE Chi Man v
HFEEAE
Mr. YAO Xian Guo v
ok S5 B o A&

Mr. YU Wayne W. (appointed on 29 August 2012) v
MEEELE(R-_ZE——FNA-_TtNLBEZFE)
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Board established the Remuneration Committee on
18 June 2009 with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities.
The Remuneration Committee comprises two INEDs,
namely Mr. Yao Xian Guo (Chairman) and Mr. Tse Chi
Man and one executive Director, namely Mr. Chai Wei.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for assisting
the Board in achieving its objective of attracting and
retaining directors and senior management of the highest
caliber and experience needed to develop the Group’s
business successfully. The Remuneration Committee is
also responsible for the development of a set of fair and
transparent procedures in determining the remuneration
policies for the Directors and senior management of the
Company and for determining their remuneration packages.

Please refer to the terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company for the principal roles and
functions of the Remuneration Committee.

No Director is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
During the vyear ended 31 December 2012, the
Remuneration Committee held one meeting to review
the Company’s remuneration policies, the terms of the
service contracts and the performance of all executive
Directors and senior management. During the year, the
Remuneration Committee determined the remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior
management and made recommendation to the Board of
the remuneration of the NEDs and INEDs.

The remuneration of the members of the senior
management for the year ended 31 December 2012 are
within the band of Nil to HKD1,000,000.

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to be
disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules
are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the financial statements.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 =Z—Z=FE#HE 045

e

EREREE AR ZH M

@

RZZFZEAFANATN\BRILE M
CEETIERERE  FERTHE
MEESREMBBILIFNTESL
Eﬂiﬁéﬁdﬁﬁuﬁﬁiﬁ ZH,

7

OV ofF mh PR
bt = o mo gt
“H:‘HJrFFéﬁmEbm

*E
T
ofF
HF

FTHEZEERE M EFERELREMTAR
AEBEBRDBERAFTIBGLERCES
EEREERE FHWEZEETAERR—E
HEARREENSREEEFTIERAE
EFMEB 2 AFERIER

FHZE NI 2ACEMBRFL2HNER
FRRARBRETIB 2 N E B e BEHE -

BMEEZ2HEEAGZ2FM -BE_F

——Ft+-_A=+—HLHFE FHEES
BIT—REF  FHARAFMECR - IR
BHBRAEMERTESFERREEEBMNX
B-AFE FHEECCEEMANTE
EREREEEBNFMNGE  YERIENTT
EERBUNNTEENFMAESSREMH
B e

BE-_FT —_F+-A=THLEFE &
HEREABBFHNERN T ZE 21,000,000
7TE o

BIELETHRAUKICETFTEENESHNR
FEESFTMEENFAENENTHRE
M sE8 129 o

E
2
|
o
3
1
1
i
4|
21



046

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

o

1k E/Hi&%

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board established a Nomination Committee on
1 April 2012 with specific written terms of reference
which deal clearly with its authority and responsibilities.
The Nomination Committee comprises of all the INEDs
and one executive director, namely Mr. Chai Wei (the
Chairman).

Please refer to the Terms of Reference of the Nomination
Committee published on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange for the roles and functions of
the Nomination Committee.

During the vyear ended 31 December 2012, the
Nomination Committee held one meeting. The
Nomination Committee has performed all its obligations
under their terms of reference in 2012.

All new appointments to the Board are considered by the
Nomination Committee whose deliberations are based
on the following criteria:

° possession of core competencies, including but not
limited to financial literacy, that are appropriate to
the Company’s business and complement the skills
and competencies of the existing Directors on the
Board;

° ability to commit time and effort to carry out duties
and responsibilities effectively; and

o possession of a good track record of experience at
a senior level in corporations/organizations.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board established the Audit Committee on 18 June
2009 with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and responsibilities. The Audit
Committee comprises all the INEDs and Mr. Pei Shao
Hua, a NED. Mr. Tse Chi Man is the chairman of the
committee.

The Audit Committee serves as a focal point for
communication between the Directors and the external
auditors as regards their duties relating to, among other
things, financial and other reporting, internal controls,
external and internal audits and to assist the Board in
fulfilling its responsibilities by providing independent view
and supervision of financial reporting.

The Board is of the opinion that the members of the
Audit Committee have sufficient accounting and financial
management expertise or experience to discharge their
duties.

Please refer to the Terms of Reference published on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange for
the roles and functions of the Audit Committee.

Two meetings were held by the Audit Committee during
the year ended 31 December 2012. The committee
reviewed, together with the management and the
external auditors, the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011 and for the six
months ended 30 June 2012, the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group and statutory
compliance. In addition to reviewing the Group’s internal
control system, the committee also reviewed the
independence of the external auditors and approved the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditors.
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ATTENDANCE OF INDIVIDUAL DIRECTORS AT BREEHEEREER

MEETINGS

The CG Code stipulates that the Board should meet TEESTARE EFgLEATHETE
regularly for at least 4 times a year at approximately HCOERLOEFRITNOR  HNFFE— K @R
quarterly intervals. The attendance of individual directors EFHEESE FMWEZER BZREZEE
at meetings of the Board, the Remuneration Committee, FIRAZEeeRUARKRERENBREHT
the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and mr

the General Meeting, respectively, is set forth in the table

below:

Meetings attended/Meetings held in 2012
“E-"FEHEEE BETEE

Remuneration Audit  Nomination General
Name of director Board Committee = Committee = Committee meeting
EENE Exe FMZEEE BHZEEe REZEE RRKE
Mr. CHAI Wei 4/4 N/A N/A 11 11
RERE TiEm TR
Mr. HU Xian Wei (resigned on 15 January 2012) 0/4 N/A N/A N/A N/A
HEBLER-_Z——F—-ATHAEMT) NER R NER NaR
Mr. DING Guang Ping (retired on 1 June 2012) 1/4 N/A N/A N/A 11
THEEERZZE-—ZFA—-BERHE) TEH N E R TER
Mr. FENG Li Min (retired on 1 June 2012) 1/4 N/A 1/2 N/A 0N
BUREHE(RZTE—ZFA—BRA) TEH TER
Mr. GU Jun Yuan (appointed on 1 June 2012 and 3/4 1/1 N/A 1/1 N/A
resigned on 7 January 2013) TER TER
BRELE(WR-ZE—-F A—HEZEK
RZE—=F—- At HEE)
Mr. PEI Shao Hua (appointed on 1 June 2012) 2/4 N/A 1/2 N/A N/A
EVERE(WN_F—_E- A BHEZMA) ~Em R Nam
Mr. ZHANG Shou Lin (retired on 1 June 2012) 1/4 N/A 1/2 N/A 0N
RFIMEE(RZT—ZFAA—BRE) TER il
Mr. TSE Chi Man 4/4 11 2/2 11 11
il & XA
Mr. YAO Xian Guo 4/4 1/ 2/2 1/1 1/1
oS Cib it
Mr. YU Wayne W. (appointed on 29 August 2012) 1/4 N/A 0/2 0/1 N/A
MEEEE(R-_Z——FN\A-THLREZMA) T~EA NER
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERME

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

KPMG, the external auditors of the Company, were
responsible for providing services in connection with
the review of the Group’s financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2012 and the audit of the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2012, the total
remuneration in respect of review and audit services
provided by KPMG for the Group amounted to
approximately RMB1,100,000 and the Group had
not engaged KPMG in the provision of any non-audit
services.

The Audit Committee recommended to the Board
(which endorsed the view) that, subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
KPMG, be re-appointed as the external auditors of the
Company for 2013.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board aims at presenting a comprehensive,
balanced and understandable assessment of the
Group’s performance, position and prospects.
Management provides such explanation and information
to enable the Board to make an informed assessment of
the matters put before the Board for approval.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group and for
ensuring that the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with applicable statutory requirements and
accounting standards.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results
in a timely manner within the time frame laid down in the
Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LEEARE

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has an overall responsibility for maintaining
a sound and effective system of internal control and for
reviewing its effectiveness, particularly in respect of the
controls on financial, operational, compliance and risk
management, to safeguard shareholders’ investment and
the Group’s assets.

The Board has conducted a review on the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group including
financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management. The Board is satisfied that, based on the
information supplied, coupled with its assistance of the
Audit Committee, the present internal controls and risk
management processes are satisfactory for the nature
and size of the Group’s operations and business.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties set out in the code provision D.3.1 of
the CG Code.

During the year under review, the Board met once to
review the compliance of the Model Code and disclosure
in this Corporate Governance Report.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board believes that transparent and timely
disclosure of the Group’s information will enable
shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decision and to have better understanding on the
Group’s business performance and strategies. It is also
vital for developing and maintaining continuing investor
relations with the Company’s potential and existing
investors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXERME

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND INVESTOR RELATIONS (Continued)

The Company maintains a website at “www.
amberenergy.com.hk” as a communication platform
with shareholders and investors, where the Group’s
business developments and operations, financial
information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access. Shareholders
and investors may also write directly to the Company’s
Investor Relationship at Room 706, 7th Floor, Albion
Plaza, 2-6 Granville Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon,
Hong Kong or via email to “hupo@amberinternational.
com.cn” for any inquiries. Inquiries are dealt with in an
informative and timely manner.

Shareholders’ meetings provide an  opportunity
for communication between the Board and the
shareholders. Board members and appropriate senior
staff of the Group are available at the meetings to answer
any questions raised by shareholders. The 2011 annual
general meeting of the Company was held on 1 June
2012, the notice of which was sent to shareholders no
less than 20 clear business days before the meeting.

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

During the reporting year, there was no amendment
made to the articles of association of the Company.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

As one of the measures to safeguard shareholders’
interests and rights, separate resolutions are proposed at
shareholders’ meetings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’
consideration and voting. All resolutions put forward at
shareholders’ meetings will be voted by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and the poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company at
“www.hkexnews.hk” and “www.amberenergy.com.hk” after
the relevant shareholders’ meetings.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
LEEARE

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (Continued)

Extraordinary general meetings may be convened by the
Board on written requisition of shareholder(s) individually
or jointly holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company pursuant to Article 58 of the
Articles of Association. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the Secretary for the purpose
of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transactions of any business
specified in such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meeting, the requisitionist(s) may do so in the same
manner. Shareholders should follow the requirements
and procedures as set out in such Article for convening
an extraordinary general meeting.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Company. Shareholders
may send their enquiries or requests in respect of their rights
as mentioned above to the Company’s Company Secretary
or via email as set out in the above section headed
“Communications with shareholders and investor relations”.
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders
of Amber Energy Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Amber Energy Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages 55
to 160, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 December 2012,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B Z AR S

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2012
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

22 March 2013
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE_—_F——Ff _HA=+—HIFE

2012
—E——F
Note RMB’000
B 3% AR¥T T

Turnover =E 4 614,399
Operating expenses REEX
Fuel consumption BRKLE (463,513)
Depreciation and amortisation T E o (44,156)
Repairs and maintenance HERRE (1,859)
Personnel costs N =D 5(ii) (16,440)
Administrative expenses THRAX (16,614)
Sales related taxes SHE MBI IEA (4,644)
Other operating expenses HthgeEMx (2,539)
Operating profit ________ ®&=% _______________ SHE
Finance income B 75 WA 2,094
Finance costs R (40,620)
Netfinance costs __ ______MBRAF®E _________50_ {38320
Other netincome ¢ Hpe A ¥ 6 _ 848
Profit before taxation B Bt A1 % F 5 26,956
Tax expense I8 B 2 7 (7,498)
Profit attributable to equity FREAQAAEZRR

shareholders of the Company  FE {5 3% Fl

for the year 19,458
Other comprehensive income HFREM2EHW A

for the year (after tax and (RBREF I EAER):

reclassification adjustment): 11
Exchange differences on translation 2 & & 9k B A 7 81 % R X

of financial statements of HE X =58

overseas subsidiaries
Total comprehensive income FRAXQABIERRR

attributable to equity EhdE2EBAHAE

shareholders of the Company

for the year
Basic earnings BRERBF

per share (RMB) (AR ) 12
Diluted earnings BREBERF

per share (RMB) (ARM® ) 12

The notes on pages 63 to 160 form part of these
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to
equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the

profit for the year are set out in note 24(d).

2011
—T——fF
RMB’000
ARETT

720,412

36,040

(2,234)

33,806

0.09

0.09

EEIE1OEFTEM T AZEN B HRE —
5 o B Rm R W RE AR QB = AR R A AR
BEBERME24(d) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION
fr B B AR

At 31 December 2012
R-ZFE——F+=-H=+—H

2012 2011

—EB——F —T——%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
BaE AR%TR ARETTT

Non-current assets RBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME - WE K&E 13 1,099,615 808,977
Lease prepayments EREE 14 52,837 27,670
Deferred tax assets BETIBEE 7 (iii) 4,049 —
________________________________________ 1,156,501 L _83:6_,6_42 i
Current assets REBEE

Inventories T8 8,688 7,812
Trade and other receivables e E 5 & EH AR IE 16 154,551 84,650
Tax recoverable A Y B % I8 - 7,643
Pledged deposits EEBER 17 64,542 47,084
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEFEED 18 155,188 168,709
________________________________________ 382,969 o §1_5_,8_9§ i
Current liabilities REBEE

Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 19 271,700 244,000
Trade and other payables BB 5 & H 518 21 169,460 43,816
Current taxation BN HR %4 18 4,492 =
________________________________________ 445,652 o _2&27_,8_16_3 i
Net current (abilties)/assets__ A (R H) REFM _______ (62.65) AR
Total assets less current MEERRBER

] _li_atlilitifi _________________________________ 1,093,818 L _86_4_,7_29 i
Non-current liabilities ERBEB

Interest-bearing borrowings FEEE 19 444,000 239,000
Convertible bonds AIERES 20 76,873 71,818
Deferred revenue i JE Uz 22 11,378 —
Long-term payables & BAFE T 3k 1B 23 14,369 18,503
Deferred tax liabilities BEFIBEEE 7 (iii) 4,390 4,023
________________________________________ 551,010 L _3913_,3_44_1 i
Net assets EEFE 542,808 531,385

63E160H FI# M i Rx E W 15 Mk — 8B

o

The notes on pages 63 to 160 form part of these
financial statements.

D

056 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED RIAGERBIRA A



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)
rE M AR AR ()

At 31 December 2012
RZFE—Z—Ff+-_H=+—H

2012 2011

N aal T 7
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Pt AR®TR NS

Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital A& A 24(b) 36,582 36,582
Reserves e 506,226 494,803
Total equity attributable AATEZRREMN
to equity shareholders R
of the Company 542,808 531,385
Approved and authorised for issue by the board of KEEEeN_T—=F=-HAZ+HHAER
directors on 22 March 2013. RERIT -
Chai Wei Pei Shao Hua
eig xOH
Director Director
EE EE
The notes on pages 63 to 160 form part of these FOEIE1G0EFTEM T RZEFU B K — &0
financial statements. o
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COMPANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

N 5] IS AR 3R

At 31 December 2012
R-ZFE——F+=-H=+—H

2012 2011
sl T F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 AR¥F T AREFT
Non-current assets kERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries ____ WAMWERE _________15_ 358,044 SIS
Current assets REBEE
Trade and other receivables e E 5 & E fib 58 16 243,608 179,514
Cash and cash equivalents HehIREEFEED 18 1,012 75,219
________________________________________ 244,620 _ 4 _25_4_,7_3§ i
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables _ _ _ _ _ | RAEARAMAE _____21_ 18,845 ENRLICEER
Netcurrentassets  ______JRBEERE ___________ RN 239334
Total assets less MEERRBAER
__current liabilites 583,819 EEEIfcICN
Non-current liabilities IRBERE
Convertible bonds BEEESE: 20 76,873 71,818
76,873 71,818
Net assets EEFE 506,946 525,560
Capital and reserves EAXRHE 24(a)
Share capital & 7= 36,582 36,582
Reserves ER 470,364 488,978
Total equity 48R % 506,946 525,560

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

REZEXR _T—=—F=_A-t+t-_AfERK

directors on 22 March 2013. MEEETT ©

Chai Wei Pei Shao Hua
52 woE
Director Director
EZF EF
The notes on pages 63 to 160 form part of these EE3E160BE s T AL EMEHRE—
financial statements. s
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEREEX

For the year ended 31 December 2012
BE—_FT——F+-HA=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ANAERRRES
Statutory
Share Share Capital Merger surplus Translation ~ Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings equity
EE
BRE  ROEE EARE AUHRE RHRE EXRGE  RKREBEEA BER
Note RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
i3 ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2011 RZB--%
-B-8 36,582 92,724 (1,876) 306,883 24,890 (3,432) 36,440 492,211
Changes in equity —E--%
for 2011: B8 :
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - - 36,040 36,040
Other comprehensive E2EKBA
income 1 - - - - - (2,234) - (2,234)
Total comprehensive FAZENALE
income for the year - - - - — (2,234) 36,040 33,806
Dividends to equity BRRRRE
shareholders 24(d) - - - - - - (20,697) (20,697)
Equity component of EAEHE
convertible bonds EREHH 20 - - 26,065 - - - - 26,065
Appropriation to reserves B ZfFE 24(c)(v) - - - - 4,541 - (4,541) -
At 31 December 2011 RZB-—-F
+-ZA=1+-8 36,582 92,724 24,189 306,383 29,431 (5,666) 47,242 531,385

The notes on pages 63 to 160 form part of these
financial statements.

FEE3E10EFME M E AR FHEHRE — &6

N

7_7\ o

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 =Z—Z=—FEH&



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

n‘/-ﬁ = *ﬂE = @J ’13—% ( Fi=| )

For the year ended 31 December 2012

HE—F——F

tZA=1—HILFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARRERRRES
Statutory
Share Share Capital Merger surplus Translation  Retained Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve  earnings equity
EE
RE  BROBE EXEE A0RE BHRE ERRE REEA aER
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000
i % ARETT AR%TR ARETR AR%®TR ARBTR AR®Tn ARETR ARETR
At 1 January 2012 R-Z-=%
-A—-H 36,582 92,724 24,189 306,883 29,431 (5,666) 47,242 531,385
Changes in equity —E--f%
for 2012: B8 :
Profit for the year FREF 19,458
Other comprehensive Hit2EBA
income 11
Total comprehensive FRE2APALE
income for the year 19,458
Dividends to equity BuRERE
shareholders 24(d) (8,403)
Appropriation to reserves B Z & 24(0)(v) (2,753)
At 31 December 2012 RZB-ZF
+-ZA=+-8 36,582 92,724 24,189 306,883 32,184 (5,298) 55,544 542,808
The notes on pages 63 to 160 form part of these FO3Z160E THMN T AZEMIFHE —
financial statements. 7 e
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BE—_F

2012 2011
==t T —F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% N ARKETT
Cash flows from operating RETHBRERE
activities
Profit for the year FREF 36,040
Adjustments for: KRR :
Depreciation of plant, property ME BENMREITE
and equipment 5(iii) 43,212 48,091
Amortisation of lease prepayments T8 1t 78 & % $5 5(iii) 944 813
Net finance costs B %5 P 2N 5 RE 5(i) 38,526 40,996
Net gain on disposal of property, — H % %% %5 K
plant and equipment W s F 5 5(iii) (132) )
Tax expenses HIER X 7() 7,498 1,882
109,506 127,820
Change in inventories 78 &R (876) 1,166
Change in trade and other receivables [& UK & 5 K& E th 5% T8 1 5 (13,866) 28,222
Change in trade and other payables F& (<} & 5 & E {th 7 18 18 105,479 (182,807)
Cash generated from/(used in) Z&FZEHFME (FTHAEREE
operating activities 200,243 (25,599)
Interest paid B A (50,800) (44,436)
Taxes received/(paid) B (BER)BE 953 (4,268)
Net cash generated from/ mESEBRE,(FA)
i (isealinlopetatinglactiyitios s =1 i N 150,396 IR
Cash flows from investing RETBSRERE
activities
Interest received B U F B 2,061 3,774
Proceeds from disposal of HEME  BENZE
property, plant and equipment FT15 318 230 198
Acquisition of property, WY %« BB R&HE
plant and equipment (364,452) (97,818)
Acquisition of lease prepayment ESENAHES (14,676) —
Net cash used in investing activites R & EE T AR & F 5 (376,837) (93,846)
The notes on pages 63 to 160 form part of these FE3E160E FTEMEAZET W HikEK — &0

financial statements.

aN
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For the year ended 31 December 2012
——FF - A=+—HIFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
an\/\Iﬁ.ﬁ/JILE%‘% (%E)

For the year ended 31 December 2012
H ik FE

BE—T——F+=-FA=+14—

2012 2011
= Lt T —F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 3% AR% T NG R
Cash flows from financing METHRERESRE
activities
Proceeds from borrowings EE B HIEAE 565,400 473,000
Proceeds from the issue of BTiTA ER ﬁ HFT18 A -
convertible bonds, BB R S KA
net of transaction costs - 100,945
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (332,700) (476,700)
Change in pledged deposits B 18 17 78 R (17,458) 85,429
Dividends paid B AR & 24(d) (2,322) (20,697)
Net cash from financing BMETEMERETFHE
__activites APRZV 161,977
Net decrease in cash and HeRBESEEYRD
cash equivalents FE (13,521) (6,172)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—BMBE2K
at 1 January HeZEEY 168,709 174,881
Cash and cash equivalents R+=ZB=+—HHEEE
at 31 December ReEEEY 155,188 168,709
The notes on pages 63 to 160 form part of these FEI3E160E TH N AZEMIEHRE — 6
yaN

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 76 45 % ) =%

REPORTING ENTITY AND BACKGROUND
INFORMATION

Amber Energy Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 8
September 2008 under the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands. The Company’s shares were
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 10
July 2009 (the “Listing”).

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2012 of the Company
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together referred to as the “Group”). The principal
activities of the Group are the development,
operation and management of power plants.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with all
applicable International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs), which collective term
includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (IASs) and related
Interpretations, promulgated by the
International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”), and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange. A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance (Continued)

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group and the Company. Note
2(e) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the
extent that they are relevant to the Group
for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of measurement

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial
statements is the historical cost basis.

Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“BRMB”) which is the
functional currency of the Group’s subsidiaries
located in the PRC. All financial information
presented in RMB has been rounded to the
nearest thousand, except when otherwise
indicated. The functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong is
Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”).

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEBARGIHBEMSE)
(Continued)
(d) Use of estimates and judgements (d) f& A 1 5+ & 3

The preparation of the consolidated financial
statements in conformity with IFRSs requires
management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and
in any future periods affected.

Notes 7, 20 and 25 contain information
about the assumptions and their risk factors
relating to deferred tax assets and liabilities,
convertible bonds and the fair value of
financial instruments. Other key sources of
estimation uncertainty are as follows:

RIEBIRM GRS ENRREER
BHRERE  EEEAFLARERE
EABRRERAREE BB KA
Eﬁiiﬂjiiﬁﬁgﬁﬁ’ﬁﬂ%ﬁ et R
c ZEHE MEBRRIDER B
E%%%ﬁ*ﬂ&ﬁ%% BATEREGERN
ZIRHEMARIEL - HEERKIE
AHVEH R BE B R RRAR A S
MEEMBEREENKRE  -BR
RERAIEEZEM[A TR -

RARGRHFBERNZE M RIEHA
BR& - GEHAFTE TR E
Fﬁ&x%%ﬁ’]ﬂiﬁmﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ% °

M EE7 ~ 20 258 A B8 7 IR & 77 1A

BEMABE ERESRERT
ARFENREIERRAR - &

fhf st TEABAE R M E ERIR A
™

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 =Z—Z=—FEH&

@[SiS]



[®]S]S]

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(d) Use of estimates and judgements
(Continued)
(i) Impairment losses for trade and

(i)

other receivables

Impairment losses for trade and other
receivables are assessed and provided
based on the management’s regular
review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectability. A considerable level
of judgement is exercised by the
management when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of
each individual customer. Any increase
or decrease in the impairment losses
for bad and doubtful debts would affect
profit or loss in future years.

Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment (other
than major generator equipment) are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking
into account the estimated residual
value. Major generator equipment which
can be identified in relation to specific
production process are depreciated by
reference to the expected production
volume of these generator equipment.

The management reviews annually the
expected production volume of major
generator equipment, and the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if
any. The depreciation expense for future
periods is adjusted if there are significant
changes from previous estimates.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Changes in accounting policies

(f)

The IASB has issued several amendments to
IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group and the
Company. None of these developments are
relevant to the Group’s financial statements
and the Group has not applied any new
standard or interpretation that is not yet
effective for the current accounting period.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. Control exists when the Group has the
power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits
from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are
exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised
gains but only to the extent that there is no
evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on
the face of the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the
total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control are accounted for as equity

transactions, whereby adjustments are
made to the amounts of controlling and non
controlling interests within consolidated equity
to reflect the change in relative interests, but
no adjustments are made to goodwill and no
gain or loss is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(f)

(9)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
it is accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at
the date when control is lost is recognised at
fair value and this amount is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or, when appropriate, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or
jointly controlled entity.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, an investment in subsidiary is stated
at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(n)).

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of

()  the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interest in
the acquiree; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEARGIHBEM®E)

(Continued)

(@) Goodwill (Continued) (9) BE#E)
Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated EEER AR R REREYIER -
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a EBeaMEENHEBIRETREA
business combination is allocated to each BREHANHBEAREFNNSRE
cash-generating unit (“CGU”), or groups of ELfEM((ReEELEN])HIRE
CGU, that is expected to benefit from the EABAAR - WEFETHER
synergies of the combination and is tested (R sE2(n) -

annually for impairment (see note 2(n)).

On disposal of a CGU during the year, any FRNEHERSELELR  BAR

attributable amount of purchased goodwill is ENHEBSETALENESG

included in the calculation of the profit or loss o

on disposal.

(h) Foreign currency (h) s

(i) Foreign currency transactions (i) IEEBEE
Transactions in foreign currencies are INERZZHIERZ 5 B EERR
translated to the respective functional ERAAEEXEARZAEN
currencies of the companies comprising e E o

the Group at exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities RE BHUIINETENE
denominated in foreign currencies at BEERBERERANER
the reporting date are retranslated to RERNEEY -HE¥IEH
the functional currency at the exchange N BERFIIANINGEE
rate at that date. The foreign currency BAENBHERAN(ZFRADN
gain or loss on monetary items is the BB KA R ) B LA
difference between amortised cost in the B ENEHEKNARERE
functional currency at the beginning of EMBEWERE ©

the year, adjusted for effective interest
and payments during the vyear, and
the amortised cost in foreign currency
translated at the exchange rate at the
end of the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEREFEHX®E
(Continued)
(h) Foreign currency (Continued) (h) sh¥(#)
(i) Foreign currency transactions () IEBREE)

(Continued)
Non-monetary assets and liabilities EATEUAIINEFENIEE
that are measured at fair value in a BEERBEHRABEQYT
foreign currency are retranslated to the EERAMNEXRERNER
functional currency at the exchange Mo IRE SR K AAINE S =
rate at the date that the fair value was WIEEKBEERARZ BN
determined. Non-monetary items that EEBRE o

are measured based on historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rate at the date of the

transaction.

Foreign currency differences arising on EHREREAMIINEES
retranslation are generally recognized in —RRERBER EEHMR
profit or loss. However, foreign currency BEUATEEELENEZERERE
differences arising from the retranslation fth 2 E W AR :

of the following items are recognised in
other comprehensive income:

—  available-for-sale equity investments — AHEERARKECRE
(except on impairment in  which BRoh - ERHAM 2 E K
case foreign currency differences ATERHINE = 208 5
that have been recognised in NEEEE)

other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss);

— a financial liability designated as a — WHEAPBER EERE
hedge of the net investment in a NEBFREZEHAT
foreign operation to the extent that ERMeaE s =

the hedge is effective; or

— qualifying cash flow hedges to the — WEABEHR EERR
extent the hedge is effective. EMEHPIA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h) Foreign currency (Continued)

(ii)

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign
operations, including goodwill and fair
value adjustments arising on acquisition,
are translated to RMB at exchange
rates at the reporting date. The income
and expenses of foreign operations are
translated to RMB at exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions.

Foreign  currency differences are
recognised in other comprehensive
income, and presented in the foreign
currency translation reserve (translation
reserve) in equity.

When the settlement of a monetary item
receivable from or payable to a foreign
operation is neither planned nor likely in
the foreseeable future, foreign currency
gains and losses arising from such item
are considered to form part of the net
investment in the foreign operation and
are recognised in other comprehensive
income, and presented in the translation
reserve in equity.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments

0]

Non-derivative financial assets

The Group initially recognises loans
and receivables on the date that they
are originated. All other financial assets
are recognised initially on the trade
date, which is the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial
asset when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the
contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are ftransferred. Any interest
in transferred financial assets that is
created or retained by the Group is
recognised as a separate asset or
liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset
and the net amount presented in the
statement of financial position when,
and only when, the Group has a legal
right to offset the amounts and intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-
derivative financial assets: loans and
receivables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Financial instruments (Continued)

0]

Non-derivative financial assets
(Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are financial
assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Such assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
loans and receivables are measured
at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment
losses (see note 2(n)).

Loans and receivables comprise cash
and cash equivalents, and trade and
other receivables.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash balances and call deposits with
maturities of three months or less from
the acquisition date that are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in their
fair value, and are used by the Group
in the management of its short-term
commitments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEASTEEXSE)
(Continued)
() Financial instruments (Continued) (i) &SI EZ)
(i) Non-derivative financial liabilities (i) FrTELTHEE
The Group initially recognises debt REERERITEBRES K

securities issued and subordinated
liabilities on the date that they are
originated. All other financial liabilities
are recognised initially on the trade
date, which is the date that the Group
becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial
liability when its contractual obligations
are discharged, cancelled or expired.

The Group classifies non-derivative
financial liabilities into the other financial
liabilities  category. Such financial
liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value less any directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, these financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Other financial liabilities comprise
loans and borrowings, trade and other
payables, convertible bonds and long-
term payables.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
(i) Financial instruments (Continued)
(iii) Share capital
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental costs directly attributable
to the issue of ordinary shares are
recognised as a deduction from equity,
net of any tax effects.
(iv) Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds that can be converted
to equity share capital at the option of
the holder, where the number of shares
that would be issued on conversion and
the value of the consideration that would
be received at that time do not vary, are
accounted for as compound financial
instruments which contain both a liability
component and an equity component.

At initial  recognition the liability
component of the convertible bonds
is measured as the present value
of the future interest and principal
payments, discounted at the market
rate of interest applicable at the time
of initial recognition to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option.
Any excess of proceeds over the
amount initially recognised as the liability
component is recognised as the equity
component. Transaction costs that relate
to the issue of a compound financial
instrument are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to
the allocation of proceeds.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 % 7% P =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 BEBARGIHBEMSE)
(Continued)
() Financial instruments (Continued) (i) &SI EZ)

(iv) Convertible bonds (Continued) (iv)] TEZEES &)

The liability component is subsequently
carried at amortised cost. The interest
expense recognised in profit or loss
on the liability component is calculated
using the effective interest method. The
equity component is recognised in the
capital reserve until either the bond is
converted or redeemed.

If the bond is converted, the capital
reserve, together with the carrying
amount of the liability component at
the time of conversion, is transferred
to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued.
If the bond is redeemed, the capital
reserve is released directly to retained
profits.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i) Property, plant and equipment
(i) Recognition and measurement

ltems of property, plant and equipment
are measured at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 2(n)).

Cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the
asset. The cost of self-constructed
assets includes the following:

o the cost of materials and direct
labour;

° any other costs directly attributable
to bringing the asset to a working
condition for their intended use;

° when the Group has an obligation
to remove the asset or restore the
site, an estimate of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items
and restoring the site on which they
are located; and

° capitalised borrowing costs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 % 7% P =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(i) Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)
(i) Recognition and measurement

(ii)

(Continued)

Purchased software that is integral to the
functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful
lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major components) of property,
plant and equipment.

Any gain and loss on disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment
(calculated as the difference between
the net proceeds from disposal and
the carrying amount of the item) is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised
only when it is probable that the future
economic  benefits associated  with
the expenditure will flow to the Group.
Ongoing repairs and maintenance are
expensed as incurred.

2 EXEFEE@#E)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EARXEBIBE#E)
(Continued)
(i) Property, plant and equipment () VE BEERREE)
(Continued)

(iiij) Depreciation

(i) #HE

080

ltems of property, plant and equipment
other than major generator equipment
are depreciated from the date they are
available for use or, in respect of self-
constructed assets, from the date that
the asset is completed and ready for
use. Depreciation is calculated to write
off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment less the estimated
residual values using the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives.
Depreciation is generally recognised
in profit or loss, unless the amount
is included in the carrying amount
of another asset. Leased assets are
depreciated over the shorter of the lease
term and their useful lives unless it is
reasonably certain that the Group will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease
term.

Major  generator equipment  which
can be identified in relation to specific
production process is depreciated by
reference to the expected production
volume of these generator equipment,
since this most closely reflects the
expected pattern of consumption of the
future economic benefits embodied in
the asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEREFEHX®E
(Continued)
(i) Property, plant and equipment () ¥ -BERZKEBE)
(Continued)
(iii) Depreciation (Continued) (iii) HTE (&)
The estimated useful lives and expected M- -BELEENEZEIR
production volume for the current and ERAFRERFENME
comparative years of significant items AFRFHRBHEENT
of property, plant and equipment are as
follows:
Buildings and plants 30 years BFREE 304
Major generator equipment 80,000- FEHEFERHE 80,000 KZE
120,000 120,000/)" ¥
hours
Other machinery 5-32 years H i # 23 5F E32%F
Motor vehicles, furniture, 5-10 years RE AR 5F =104
fixtures, equipment KE  RiE
and others M EAM
Depreciation methods, useful lives, WwEFXE FIFEBRSFH - FE
expected production volume and HEELRFHKEBEENRZIRE
residual values are reviewed at AHEMWARE(HER) -
each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.
(k) Lease prepayments (k) FESHE2
Lease prepayments in the consolidated REMBRARNBENESESN
statement of financial position represent THEBFEEN T hERAEE
the cost of land use rights paid to PRC R RET S RO EEE
government authorities. Lease prepayments ABR(EW&E2n) - #HIZEEZE
are carried at cost less accumulated RNEFERAEESHRNEERINR -

amortisation and impairment losses (see note
2(n)). Amortisation is charged to profit or loss
on a straight-line basis over the respective
periods of the rights.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0

(m)

Leased assets

Leases in terms of which the Group assumes
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership are classified as finance leases.
On initial recognition, the leased asset is
measured at an amount equal to the lower
of its fair value and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Subsequent to
initial recognition, the asset is accounted for
in accordance with the accounting policy
applicable to that asset.

Other leases are operating leases and are
not recognised in the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position.

Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. The cost of
inventories is based on the first-in-first-out
principle, and includes expenditure incurred
in acquiring the inventories, production or
conversion costs, and other costs incurred
in bringing them to their existing location
and condition. In the case of manufactured
inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of production
overheads based on normal operating
capacity.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated costs of completion and
estimated cost necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Impairment

0]

Non-derivative financial assets

A financial asset not classified as at fair
value through profit or loss is assessed
at each reporting date to determine
whether there is objective evidence
that it is impaired. A financial asset is
impaired if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial
recognition of the asset, and that loss
event(s) had an impact effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset
that can be estimated reliably.

Objective  evidence that financial
assets are impaired includes default or
delinquency by a debtor, restructuring
of an amount due to the Group on
terms that the Group would not
consider otherwise, indications that a
debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy,
adverse changes in the payment status
of borrowers or issuers, economic
conditions that correlate with defaults
or the disappearance of an active
market for a security. In addition, for
an investment in an equity security, a
significant or prolonged decline in its fair
value below its cost is objective evidence
of impairment.

2 EXEFEE@#E)

(n) ®W{E

(i)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Impairment (Continued)

0]

Non-derivative financial assets
(Continued)

The Group considers evidence of
impairment for financial assets measured
at amortised cost (loans and receivables)
at both a specific asset and collective
level. All individually significant assets
are assessed for specific impairment.
Those found not to be specifically
impaired are then collectively assessed
for any impairment that has been
incurred but not yet identified. Assets
that are not individually significant are
collectively assessed for impairment by
grouping together assets with similar risk
characteristics.

In  assessing collective impairment,
the Group uses historical trends of
the probability of default, the timing
of recoveries and the amount of loss
incurred, adjusted for management’s
judgement as to whether current
economic and credit conditions are
such that the actual losses are likely to
be greater or less than suggested by
historical trends.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Impairment (Continued)

0]

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets
(Continued)

An impairment loss in respect of a
financial asset measured at amortised
cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount and the
present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate. Losses are
recognised in profit or loss and reflected
in an allowance account against
receivables. Interest on the impaired
asset continues to be recognised. When
an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised causes the amount
of impairment loss to decrease, the
decrease in impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
non-financial assets, inventories and
deferred tax assets, are reviewed
at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of
impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. Goodwill is tested annually
for impairment. An impairment loss is
recognised if the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

2 EXEFEE@#E)

(n) BWEE)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Impairment (Continued)
(i) Non-financial assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount of an asset or
CGU is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell. In
assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or
CGU. For the purpose of impairment
testing, assets are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or CGUs.
Subject to an operating segment
ceiling test, CGUs to which goodwill
has been allocated are aggregated
so that the level at which impairment
testing is performed reflects the lowest
level at which goodwill is monitored for
internal reporting purposes. Goodwill
acquired in a business combination is
allocated to groups of CGUs that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of
combination.

Impairment  losses are recognised
in profit or loss. Impairment losses
recognised in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to
the CGU (group of CGUs), and then to
reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU (group of CGUs) on a
pro rata basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 % 7% P =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Impairment (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss in respect of goodwiill
is not reversed. For other assets, an
impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no
impairment loss had been recognised.

Interim financial reporting and
impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited, the Group is
required to prepare an interim financial
report in compliance with IAS 34, Interim
financial reporting, in respect of the first
six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group
applies the same impairment testing,
recognition, and reversal criteria as it
would at the end of the financial year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n) Impairment (Continued)

(iii) Interim financial reporting and

impairment (Continued)

Impairment losses recognised in an
interim period in respect of goodwill,
available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at
cost are not reversed in a subsequent
period. This is the case even if no
loss, or a smaller loss, would have
been recognised had the impairment
been assessed only at the end of the
financial year to which the interim period
relates. Consequently, if the fair value
of an available-for-sale equity security
increases in the remainder of the
annual period, or in any other period
subsequently, the increase is recognised
in other comprehensive income and not
profit or loss.

(o) Employee benefits

(i)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations
are measured on an undiscounted basis
and are expensed as the related service
is provided. A liability is recognised for
the amount expected to be paid under
short-term cash bonus if the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation
to pay this amount as a result or of past
service provided by the employee, and
the obligation can be estimated reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o) Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Defined contribution retirement
plan

Pursuant to the relevant laws and
regulations of the PRC, employees of the
Group participate in the social insurance
system established and managed by
government organisations. The Group
makes social insurance contributions,
including contributions to basic pension
insurance, basic medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, work-related
injury insurance, maternity insurance and
etc., as well as contributions to housing
fund, at the applicable benchmarks
and rates stipulated by the government
for the benefit of its employees. The
social insurance and housing fund
contributions are recognised as part of
the cost of assets or charged to profit or
loss on an accrual basis.

(p) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a
past event, the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows
at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding
of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p)

(q)

(r)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Revenue

Revenue from sales of electricity is recognised
upon the transmission of electric power to the
power grid companies, as determined based
on the volume of electric power transmitted
and the applicable fixed tariff rates agreed
with  the respective electric power grid
companies periodically.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised initially
as deferred income at fair value when there
is reasonable assurance that they will be
received and that the Group will comply with
the conditions associated with the grant,
and are then recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the useful life of the
asset.

Grant that compensate the Group for
expenses incurred are recognised in profit or
loss as other income on a systematic basis
in the periods in which the expenses are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)

(t)

Lease payments

Payment made under operating leases
are charged to profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an
integral part of the total lease expense, over
the term of the lease.

Finance income and finance costs

Finance income comprises interest income
and foreign currency gains. Interest income is
recognised as it accrues in profit or loss, using
the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense
on borrowings, bank charges and foreign
currency losses and unwinding of the discount
on provisions. Borrowing costs that are
not directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of a qualifying
asset are recognised in profit or loss using the
effective interest method.

Foreign currency gains and losses on financial
assets and financial liabilities are reported on
a net basis as either finance income or finance
cost depending on whether foreign currency
movements are in a net gain or net loss
position.

BERGTBEE)
(s) ®&

®)

RELEHOZNREERERNE
HEREMER - A HE ZE
RERERASEHEEREENIE

o e

5ot 35 WA % Bt 75 B AR

B A5 WA B B A R SME
g7 o FMEBMARERN S AE R

MBRABEEENEFAX - R1T
WE - INEBBRBEHETRZD -
WIEE  ZEXEERTREE
EEREENEERARAERINE

MBEERMBARBENINER B
RNSMEZ BB S SOF R -
BEEZRSM B WAL K
ZK o

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 =Z—Z=—FEH&

091



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 EBEREFEHXE
(Continued)
(u) Tax (u) BiE
Tax expense comprises current and deferred MIERY BRI RELERIE « B
tax. Current tax and deferred tax is recognised HMIBRIEEHIENERER -
in profit or loss except to the extent that it HEETESNEME2EBARER
relates to items recognised directly in equity or WIEE B@EBRI -

in other comprehensive income.

(i) Current tax (i) BIA ® =

Current tax is the expected tax payable BRI B F A B R B A
or receivable on the taxable income or 5% /85 18 Y T8 HA FE S sk e U R
loss for the year, using tax rates enacted B EBRRERHEBRXER
or substantively enacted at the reporting ERMBEFE  UHBE
date, and any adjustment to tax payable FEMEARBELFAE -

in respect of previous years. Current tax FE %%Sl AT IB I BB R AR
payable also includes any tax liability BENMEMMRIEBARE

arising from the declaration of dividends.

(i) Deferred tax (i) EEZHE
Deferred tax is recognised in respect B BREAREY KR
of temporary differences between the EMEN 2 EERABEER®T
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities TE BN e cEREZHEE
for financial reporting purposes and RTINS EBRBEL
amounts used for taxation purposes. TIE -

Deferred tax is not recognised for:

e temporary differences on the initial o EBEHUIINRFIHD
recognition of assets or liabilities in TEEHRENERY
a transaction that is not a business wmHNHEEZEES A
combination and that affects B RRELE 2K
neither accounting nor taxable EE

profit or loss;

e  temporary differences related to e BHERWBARZIEE
investments in subsidiaries to the i 2N &8 B BE 4 ) H 8 [0
extent that the Group is able to BEBAKATERATR
control the timing of the reversal of 7 2R B [B] ) BT B R
the temporary differences and it is &

probable that they will not reverse
in the foreseeable future; and

[@S)=] AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2
(Continued)

EREHBEE)

(u) Tax (Continued)
(i) Deferred tax (Continued)

(u) BEE)
(i) AEZEHE (%)

° taxable  temporary differences
arising on the initial recognition of
goodwill.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects
the tax consequences that would follow
the manner in which the Group expects,
at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax
rates that are expected to be applied
to temporary differences when they
reverse, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset if there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax liabilities and
assets, and they relate to taxes levied
by the same tax authority on the same
taxable entity, or on different tax entities,
but they intend to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis or
their tax assets and liabilities will be
realised simultaneously.

A deferred tax asset is recognised for
unused tax losses, tax credits and
deductible temporary differences, to
the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against
which they can be utilised. Deferred tax
assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u) Tax (Continued)
(iii) Tax exposures

In determining the amount of current
and deferred tax, the Group takes
into account the impact of uncertain
tax positions and whether additional
taxes and interest may be due. This
assessment relies on estimates and
assumptions and may involve a series
of judgements about future events.
New information may become available
that causes the Group to change its
judgement regarding the adequacy of
existing tax liabilities; such changes to
tax liabilities will impact tax expense in
the period that such as a determination
is made.

(v) Dividends

Dividends are recognised as a liability in the
period in which they are declared.

(w) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in profit or loss
in the year in which they are incurred, except
to the extent that they are capitalised as
being directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which
necessarily takes a substantial period of time
to get ready for its intended use or sale.

0s4a AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

2  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Borrowing costs (Continued)

(x)

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part
of the cost of qualifying asset commences
when expenditures for the asset are being
incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare
the asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs
is suspended or ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(y) Related parties

(M

(it

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group if
that person:

(a)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(@)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of the Group of which the
other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is
an associate of the third entity;

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 % 7% P =

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(v)

Related parties (Continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:
(Continued)

(e) the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;

() the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(i); or

(9) a person identified in ()@ has
significant  influence over the
entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person
in their dealings with the entity.

2
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DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUES

A number of the Group’s accounting policies
and disclosures require the determination of fair
value, for both financial and non-financial assets
and liabilities. Fair values have been determined
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
based on the following methods. When applicable,
further information about the assumptions made
in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes
specific to that asset or liability.

(@) Trade and other receivables, trade and
other payables

The carrying values of these financial assets
and liabilities approximate their respective fair
values due to the short maturities of these
instruments.

(b) Interest-bearing borrowings

The carrying amounts of interest-bearing
borrowings approximate their fair values
based on the borrowing rates currently
available for bank loans with similar terms and
maturity.

(c) Other non-derivative financial liabilities

Other non-derivative financial liabilities are
measured at fair value, at initial recognition
and for disclosure purposes, at each annual
reporting date. Fair value is calculated based
on the present value of future principal
and interest cash flows, discounted at the
market rate of interest at the reporting date.
In respect of the liability component of
convertible bonds, the market rate of interest
is determined by reference to similar liabilities
that do not have a conversion option.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 % 7% P =

4  TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a)

(b)

Turnover

The principal activities of the Group are the
development, operation and management of
power plants.

Turnover represents revenue from the sale of
electricity to power grid companies.

Segment reporting

The most senior executive management have
identified four operating segments, which are
the four power plants, namely:

° Amber (Anji) Gas Turbine Thermal Power
Co., Ltd. (“Anji Power Plant”);

o Zhejiang Amber De-Neng Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“De-Neng
Power Plant”);

° Zhejiang Amber Jing-Xing Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Jing-Xing
Power Plant”); and

o Hangzhou Amber Blue Sky Natural Gas
Power Generation Co., Ltd. (“Blue Sky
Power Plant”).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

4 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 EEERDIBHEE)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) PEHE#E)

100

The most senior executive management
are of the view that these four operating
segments contribute to the entire revenue
of the Group and should be aggregated to

RAUPBHRER  BEETRERE
R ARZEEEED MELAXR
SE=E U - B LER A
= EmEE LEIRF FFPHE

a single reportable segment of the Group, ;"éE;”le&Etmfﬁf“*Hﬁ Eﬂgé\@??ﬁ
power segment, for financial reporting KEBEE-—ZH/HILE—FBHHEB -

purpose as they have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of
nature of products, production processes, the
type of class of customers and the regulatory
environment.

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception
of other corporate assets. Segment liabilities
include trade creditors, accruals and bills
payable attributable to sales activities of the
power segment, convertible bonds, and bank
borrowings managed directly by the power
segment, with the exception of corporate
liabilities.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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4

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 &

(Continued)

(b) Segment reporting (Continued)

(i)

Reconciliations of reportable

il

E L%

okt

B ¥R & (4)

(b) ZEMEHE (&)

segment turnover, profit, assets

and liabilities

() ZEHTEEXRE w7 &
EREEHK

2012 2011

- Ll —T——F

Turnover RMB’000 RMB’000

EEE AR T & NG R

Reportable segment turnover EWMDHEFERE 614,399 720,412

Consolidated turnover A EER 614,399 720,412

2012 2011

e e 7

Profit RMB’000 RMB’000

s A AR T T NG R
Reportable segment profit 2D I E 31,590
Unallocated corporate expenses kDR ¥R X (4,634)
Consolidated profit before taxation 4x& & %t Al i 71 26,956

2012 2011

N T F

Assets RMB’000 RMB’000

EE AR%E T N R

Reportable segment assets ERHBEE 1,538,320 1,076,376

Other corporate assets HEMrxEE 1,150 76,169

Consolidated total assets EBEMRE 1,539,470 1,152,545
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

4  TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 4 EXBERDEBHEHE)
(Continued)
(b) Segment reporting (Continued) (b) DEHE (&)
(i) Reconciliations of reportable () Z2HHEXHE BF &
segment turnover, profit, assets EREBEHKE)

and liabilities (Continued)

2012 2011
— el T —F

Liabilities RMB’000 RMB’000
i=F AR% Tt N R
Reportable segment liabilities EWMHHEE 983,881 536,371
Corporate liabilities TEBEE 12,781 84,789

Consolidated total liabilities ReEBaEREE 996,662 621,160
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PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

(i) Net finance costs

BR Bt A1 % Al

BRBAENE MR (GEA)

(i) FMBEAFE

2012
—E—C-F
RMB’000
ARE TR
Interest income A2 A (2,061)
Net foreign exchange gain HME W a3 0% 7R (33)
Financial income —§ MBEBA (2,094)
Interest on interest-bearing FEBEREAMERTT
borrowings and BERHE
other bank advances
Interest on convertible bonds AERESFE

Total interest expense on
financial liabilities
Less: interest expense
capitalised into assets
under construction*

MBRENERZARE

B EREERER
BAMMEHX

Total interest expense

KB 25 FER A LB

recognised in profit or loss X 58
Bank charges R1TE A
Financialexpenses_ _ _ ______BBWX __________
Net finance costs B 5 P AN KR

*

The borrowing costs have been capitalised at a rate of

6.15% t0 9.72% per annum (2011: 9.72%).

2011
—T——F
RMB’000
ARKETTT

(3,774)
(116)

527

N BEEBARAZBERANFFER6.15%
FOT72%(ZF——F 1 9.72%) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 5 PBRFAGF (&)
(ii) Personnel costs (i) BEIRA
2011
—E——_F —_EF——
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ENGR

Wages, salaries and other benefits ¥ & ~ T & &k H fth 1&@ F
E R ARG Sl ) 3R

Contribution to defined
contribution plan

15,086 20,052

1,354 1,143

16,440 21,195

The Group participates in pension funds
organised by the PRC government.
According to the respective pension fund
regulations, the Group is required to pay
annual contributions. The Group remits all the
pension fund contributions to the respective
social security offices, which are responsible
for the payments and liabilities relating to the
pension funds. The Group has no obligation
for payment of retirement and other post-
retirement benefits of employees other than
the contributions described above.

The Group also operates a defined
contribution  Mandatory  Provident  Fund
retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees employed by the Company in
Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 5 BRBANER(#)
(iii) Other items (iii) HMEAE
2012 2011
il Sl — T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%E T NG R
Operating lease charges KreEHe 1,696 1,249
Gain on disposal of plant, HEME  MEK
property and equipment 5 U E (132) @)
Amortisation 5y 944 813
Depreciation e 43,212 48,091
Auditor’s remuneration % EL R BN &
— audit services — ZERTE 1,209 1,113
6 OTHER NET INCOME 6 Ht A FEE
2012 2011
sl - 7
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T IUNEE S
Government grants BT 48 B 848 1,367

The Group was awarded unconditional government
grants amounting to RMB848,000 for the vyear
ended 31 December 2012 (2011: RMB1,367,000).
These government grants were given as recognition
of the Group’s contribution to the development of
the local economy.

AEEHE_ZTE——F+_A=+—
AEtFREEEKRGBRNTMM AR
848,000 L (=T ——F : ARK
1,367,0007T0) ° :Z E T Bh B = H A
SEHEHLEEEREBIAORA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

7 TAXES 7 WBiE
() Income tax in the consolidated () HE2EBARAVEFESRE :
statement of comprehensive income

represents:

2012 2011

N Nl T 7
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T T NG R

Current tax B HA B 18

PRC Corporate Income Tax RE R EMER 11,248 8,454

Income tax credit s e (751) (8,454)

Deferred tax EZEB |

Origination and reversal of EREENESEREE

temporary differences (2,999) 1,882

Total income tax expense in REE2EKRAXY

the consolidated statement FriSiif < 5
of comprehensive income 1,882

(@) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of @ REFESHEMEI KE
the Cayman Islands, the Group is not R AEEBAHMNEMARR
subject to any income tax in the Cayman EFHEMEMN -

Islands.

(o) No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax b)) BE=z—_ZF——_F+ = A
has been made for the subsidiaries =+—BLFE BHRES
located in Hong Kong as these BB AR EAZMNE B
subsidiaries did not have assessable PSR ERE SR -
profits subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax EEZEMBRARIGREES
for the year ended 31 December 2012 FME#RBE(ZZ ——F
(2011: Nil). /") -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 755 3 2% Py =

7  TAXES (Continued)

(i)

Income tax in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income
represents: (Continued)

(©)

The provision for PRC income tax is
based on the respective Corporate
Income Tax rates applicable to the
subsidiaries located in the PRC as
determined in accordance with the
relevant income tax rules and regulations
of the PRC.

According to the Corporate Income Tax
Law of the People’s Republic of China
(“New Tax Law”) which took effect on 1
January 2008, the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC are subject to the unified tax
rate of 25% in 2012.

Pursuant to the New Tax Law, 10%
withholding tax is levied on the foreign
investor (5% for foreign investors who
are registered in Hong Kong provided
they meet certain criteria) in respect
of dividend distributions arising from a
foreign investment enterprise’s profits
earned after 1 January 2008. Deferred
tax liabilites of RMB4,390,000 have
been recognised for the retained profits
of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries as at
31 December 2012 to the extent that
these earnings would be distributed
in the foreseeable future (2011:
RMB4,023,000).

Pursuant to the relevant PRC tax law
and regulations, the Group was granted
an income tax credit of RMB751,000 for
purchases of domestic equipment for
production (2011: RMB8,454,000).

7 BB

) SEEZEVRARANAEHIE :

(%)

(©

B P 15 A A A X R B Y
BRAASEERNEEMRE
BB R (RE P BEEREREH
MERERETE)E -

RE_ZZNF-—A—HE
ERE R EARKME DX
FEBRETHBE]D =%
——F AEEGTEHRER
AR E R RGE— /25% ©

BEFHE IEEEEA
MINFRECER-_ZTEN
F—H— B % BREUEF
EENEKBEDIRIZHE10%
(FEBETEZENT BRI
R EENEBRE B
BMBEHNR - ERAEEF
BB AREBEEZE T ——F
+—BA=1+—BEBRARB
R R B R B 5 F B R IE T
HEAaE AR 4,390,000
T(ZE——F: AR®
4,023,0007T) ©

BRI AR BB A MOER
AEBEBEERNELAERMBEM
E RT3 2 A R #751,000
T(ZE——F: AR¥
8,454,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

7  TAXES (Continued) 7 BEE)
(ii) Reconciliation between tax expense (i) HEARRFTENHRERAIHESE
and accounting profit at applicable tax aTom R E R -
rate:

2012 2011
N Nl T 7
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T NS R

Profit before taxation Fr % A1 A 26,956 37,922
Notional tax on profit before BRALATRE N 2 B E -

taxation, calculated at 25% R25%:T & 7,127 9,481
Effect of different tax rates MEBARBEAZ TEB X

applicable to subsidiaries -4 (1,726)
Tax effect of non-deductible AAMBATIZHEBEFE

expenses 699
Income tax credit Frig ik & (8,454)
Withholding tax on profits retained & Bl fff & 2 &) {R & i | &

by PRC subsidiaries e 1,882
Actual tax expense ERBIBRAEZ 1,882
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7  TAXES (Continued) 7 BIE#E)
(iii) Recognised deferred tax assets and (i) ECRAREEHEELEERER
liabilities
Deferred tax assets and liabilites are BEEHRBEEERBERAT -

attributable to the following:

The Group
AEH
Assets Liability
BE a&
2012 2011 2012 2011
b Sl T —F Wb lgmtl T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
INGLE A ARETT PNGEEETE ARETT

Property, plant and ERY Y&
equipment

Withholding tax on profits 7 & & & B} B
retained by the Group’s NEMR B E T

PRC subsidiaries EMR - (4,390)
Government grants 5 T % Bh 2,859 =
Tax losses of WEDa eEimE

a subsidiary &8 327 -

Deferred tax assets/ ELHEBEEE/
(liabilities) (BE) 4,049 (4,390)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7% ¥ 7= MY

7  TAXES (Continued)

(iv) Movement in deferred tax balance
during the year

Property,
plant and
equipment

nE - BE
&S
RMB’000
AR®ET R
At 1 January 2012 RZE—ZF
—-B—H
Reversal upon distribution 749 & & 8.5 #
of dividends
Recognised in REEERAERRER

consolidated
income statement

At 31 December 2012 i

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED RIAGERBIRA A

7 BB
(ivi FREZEBIREREE

The Group

r5E
Withholding
tax on profits
retained by
the Group’s
PRC
subsidiaries
AEEH
WEAR
RERF
MEMH
RMB’000
ARET R

Tax loss of
a subsidiary

Government
grants

il Al
HERR
RMB’000
ARBTR

B
RMB’000
ARBTR

(4,023)

683

(1,050)

(4,390)

st
RMB’000
ARBTR

(4,023)

683




DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’

remuneration

disclosed

pursuant

to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance is as follows:

Executive directors

Mr. Chai Wei

Mr. Hu Xianwei (resigned on
15 January 2012)

Non-executive directors

Mr. Pei Shaohua (appointed
on 1 June 2012)

Mr. Gu Junyuan (appointed on
1 June 2012 and resigned
on 7 January 2013)

Mr. Ding Guangping
(retired on 1 June 2012)

Mr. Feng Limin
(retired on 1 June 2012)

Independent
non-executive directors
Mr. Zhang Shoulin
(retired on 1 June 2012)
Mr. Tse Chi Man
Mr. Yu Wayne. W. (appointed
on 29 August 2012)
Mr. Yao Xianguo

BTES

fEEE

HEBEERZE—ZF
—ATHEBET)

FUTES

FLEZE(RZZ-ZF
~NA—BEZ{E)

BRRLE(RZE—ZF
NA-HEZEY

RZF-=F-ALARME)

THEEE(R=F =&
AA-REE)
BIR%E(R=F-24
AA-REH)

BIFUGES

AR T F
XA-BRHE)

LIS ET:
DERAE(R-F-—F
NA=THBEER)

fadss

Directors’
fee

EShe
RMB'000

ARBTR

EEME

BEEBELNIGENEIIHNEENES
MemT

Year ended 31 December 2012
HZE-Z-"5+-A=1+-HLHFE

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind
Fe o 2H
RENFH &
RMB’000
ARETR

Retirement

scheme
contributions Total

BRHE
MiEa % @5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETE ARMTRT ARET:

Discretionary
bonuses
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8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued) 8 EEME(#)

Year ended 31 December 2011
BE-F——&£+-fA=1+-BILEE

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Total
5é R0 RIREE
E20e  REMNG BB 5% @it

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETR ARETR  ARBTL  ARET:R

Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Chai Wei REEE - 666 - 29 695
Mr. Hu Xianwei (resigned on HERLEE(R-_2—ZF

15 January 2012) —A+AAEE) - 288 - 28 316
Non-executive directors FUTES
Mr. Feng Limin BUR%E - - - - -
Mr. Ding Guangping THYEE - - - - -

Independent non-executive ~ BUEHITEE

directors
Mr. Znang Shoulin RIMEA 146 - 12 = 158
Mr. Tse Chi Man HEXLE 146 - 12 - 158
Mr. Yao Xianguo hEELE 146 - 12 - 158
438 954 36 57 1,485
An analysis of directors’ remuneration by the REFEANBLHSEEZ > NEEZE
number of directors and remuneration range is as ST
follows:
2012 2011
— N T —F
Number of Number of
directors directors
EEAY EFEAH
Nil to HKD1,000,000 Z 21,000,000 7T 10 7
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NCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (Continued)

There were no amounts paid during the year to
directors in connection with their retirement from
employment with the Group, or inducement to join.
There was no arrangement during the year under
which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration.

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
one (2011: two) is director whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the other four (2011:
three) individuals are as follows:

EEME @)

TR ASERERNESRERIE/MN
BASENRBH XN TFTEEEAK
B NERIEEHELR B REEM
B B9 % BF o

RE#HAL

AEEREESHFALH  —R(=ZF
——F MBIREF  REAMER
BRMES B (ZF——F : =
FIATHBEEBELT :

2012 2011
N aa T 7

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T & RN R

Wages, salaries and other benefits ~ T&  H& R EEF 1,461 1,435

Contributions to defined
contribution plan

TE BR A ANET B 15K

104 75

1,565 1,510

Number of individuals AT AE

The above individuals’ emoluments are within
the band of Nil to HKD1,000,000 (2011: Nil to
HKD1,000,000).

There were no amounts paid during the year to the
five highest paid employees in connection with their
retirement from employment with the Group, or
inducement to join.

it A& B & T FZ £1,000,0007 7T
(ZZ——4%F : ZF1,000,0007T) °

FA AKERENALRSFHREERE
BB K 1 A 00 B /R 5% (8 & 2R B T () L S A
E I FRIE o
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10 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 10 ADFIRERREEGER
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to equity AAREFRHEELHEERZTINEEAR
shareholders of the Company includes a loss of #10,223,000C(Z T ——F : BEA
RMB10,223,000 (2011: RMB4,265,000 loss) which R #4,265,0007T) M BB - ERARA]
has been dealt with in the financial statements of R REIE -

the Company.

Reconciliation of the above amount to the P BEERARABDNFAN(ER), @8
Company’s (loss)/profit for the year: HER -

2012 2011

- Bkl — T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
NGB ARETT

Amount of consolidated profit RARRMBEWMEREER
attributable to equity shareholders e 2= IR R E G 4R & i A
dealt with in the Company’s Gkl
financial statements (10,223) (4,265)

Dividends from subsidiaries attributable 7 Bf B 4F [ 3 FI| & 4 &9
to the profit of the current financial WERRRKRE

year, approved during the year R E R E 34,896
The Company’s (loss)/profit KABRFR(EE),/
for the year (note 24(a)) i Al (B 7E24(a)) (10,223) 30,631
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

11 OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 11 HME2EBA
Tax effect relating to each component of other EM2ERASERNBONHELE

comprehensive income

2012 2011

—B--f —T——%

Tax Tax
Before-tax  (expense)/  Net-of-tax Before-tax (expense)/ Net-of-tax
amount benefit amount amount benefit amount

HE HiE
BR % A (%) BB % B (FAx)/ BBtk
k- BE k- 8 B= i
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
INCL SN SN LSS ARETT ARETT ARETRH

Exchange differences on BEBNEBL A

translation of financial HBERENER

statements of overseas £

subsidiaries (2,234) . (2,234)
Other comprehensive income ~ E /2 AW A (2,234) — (2,234)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

12 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER
SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share (a)

12 SREXRXREERR

BREXRER

EREABANEZEFAARRA L
AREZRIAELEENAR
19,458,000 (ZF ——F : AR
¥ 36,040,0007T) & B 17 & @R
/9 hn ¥ F 5 £8415,000,000 (= &
——% :415,000,000) 5t &M T :

The calculation of basic earnings per share
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary
equity shareholders of the Company of
RMB19,458,000 (2011: RMB36,040,000) and
the weighted average of 415,000,000 ordinary
shares (2011: 415,000,000) in issue during
the year, calculated as follows:

(i) Weighted average number of () ZBBERBINEFLGE
ordinary shares
2012 2011
el Bkl — T — —F
Number Number
of shares of shares
g IR &
Issued ordinary shares R—A—HBE%EITH
at 1 January (note 24(b)(i)) I8 A% (BT 5E24(0) () EREOGLE 415,000,000
Weighted average number of R+=—A=+—8”
ordinary shares T AR A
at 31 December hn#E 15 415,000,000 415,000,000
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER 12 BREAREERA (&)

SHARE (Continued)

(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EREEER
The calculation of diluted earnings per share BESRMNEAAA LT BEER
is based on the profit attributable to ordinary f% 3R FE 1h & F A R 19,458,000
equity shareholders of the Company of T(Z T — — F: AR
RMB19,458,000 (2011: RMB36,040,000) 36,040,0007T ) K& & i/ I &9 I #E ¢
and the weighted average number of ordinary ¥ 460,000,000 = & — — &F :
shares of 460,000,000 shares (2011: 418,945205) st E 0T -

418,945,205), calculated as follows:

(i) Profit attributable to ordinary () FRraZEEERZRRELD
equity shareholders of the F (# %)
Company (diluted)
The interest expenses on the liability AERELFNEEIHDHF
component of convertible bonds (see BRX (R F20)ERFA
note 20) have been capitalised during % FERAR - At EARRQ A
the year. Therefore, there is no effect mRREERMNNTEZE -

on the profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company.

(i) Weighted average number of (i) ZERBINEFIGE (#E)
ordinary shares (diluted)
2012 2011
N N T 7
Number Number
of shares of shares
g IR &
Weighted average number of R+—_A=+—8H
ordinary shares I3 AR A AN HE S 15 8
at 31 December 415,000,000 415,000,000
Effect of conversion ERIERELSNTE
of convertible bonds 45,000,000 3,945,205

Weighted average number of R+=—A=+—8H

ordinary shares (diluted) L im AR H hn A
at 31 December 8 (#E) LGOI 418,945,205
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13 W% BENKRE

The Group Py
Motor
vehicles,
furniture,
Buildings Major fixtures,
and generator Other equipment  Assets under
plants equipment machinery and others  construction Total
RE
B HE
BFREE TERERE HitgE  RERHEM EREE Azt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AR®Tn AR%®TrT AR®Tn ARETR
Cost %S
Balance at 1 January 2011 “E-——%-f-H
E’]mﬁ? 102,391 721,061 178,289 13,404 4,316 1,014,461
Additions RE 646 682 72 2,085 50,134 53,619
Transfer from assets BEREEREE
under construction 247 11,728 293 - (12,268) -
Disposals HE (235) - - (14) - (249)
Balance at 31 December 2011 “F——4%+ZA
=t+-HBNES 108,049 733,471 178,654 15,475 42,182 1,067,831
Additions AE - 423 328 1,016 332,181 333,948
Transfer from assets BRAEREAE
under construction 567 11,222 126 - (11,915) -
Disposals HE - = = (1,947) = (1,947)
Balance at 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-8
“+-RHE 103,616 745,116 174,108 14,544 362,448 1,399,832
Accumulated depreciation 25tiE
Balance at 1 January 2011 —E-——%-f—-H
E’] e (17,299) (134,486) (50,646) (8,385) - (210,816)
Charge for the year FRER (3,613 (32,516) (10,462) (1,500) - (48,091)
Written back on disposals HERE 4 - - 12 - 53
Balance at 31 December 2011 —F——%+ZA
;+ HHE &8 (20,871) (167,002) (61,108) (9,879) - (258,854)
Charge for the year FRER (3,293) (27,621) (11,209) (1,089) - (43,212)
Written back on disposals HEEM - - - 1,849 - 1,849
Balance at 31 December 2012 R-ZE--F+-H
=t—BRE (24,164) (194,623) (72,317) (9,113) (300,217)
Carrying amounts RHE
Balance at 31 December 2012 —E-ZE+-f
“T-ANEH 550,493 101,791 362,448 1,099,615
Balance at 31 December 2011 “F——4+ZA
“T-RNEH 82,178 566,469 112,546 5,602 42,182 808,977
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)

The Group (Continued)

)

(i)

(i)

All of the property, plant and equipment
owned by the Group are located in the PRC.

As at 31 December 2012, certain property,
plant and equipment with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB613,213,000 were
pledged as collateral for bank loans (2011:
RMB633,559,000) (see note 19(i)).

The refund of VAT on purchases of
depreciable assets has been deducted from
the carrying amount of the relevant assets.
The amount is transferred to income in the
form of reduced depreciation charge over the
useful lives of the relevant assets. This policy
has resulted in a reduction of depreciation
charge by RMB1,947,000 for the year ended
31 December 2012 (2011: RMB2,421,000).
As at 31 December 2012, a balance of
RMB43,065,000 remains to be depreciated
(2011: RMB45,012,000).

13 ¥ BERRKZESE)

EEE)

(i)

AEBBEENME  BFE R&ES
R -

RZE——F+-_A=+—H £
BRMAE A A R#613,213,0007T (=
T——4F : AR¥633,559,0007T)
METYE BERRKEARITE
SR (R FE193) ©

BEAMEEENEAETREREE
BAEMEEMREDENR -ZE2 8
REBEEMAFERFHANNAR
EBARIHEAERERA -
hBESBE-_E—=—+=A
S+ HALFEZWEBARLA
R#1,047,000 (ZFE——F : A
R¥2,421,000T) MR ZZE—=
F+-_A=+—8 MNEEHAR
#43,065,0007L(ZF ——F : A
R #45,012,0007T) & -
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14 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 14 FE{SHEE

120

The Group Py
Cost AR

Balance at 1 January 2011 RZZE——F-—HA—BM&&H 32,909
Additions NE -
Balance at 31 December 2011 RZE——F+_A=+—HHNEH 32,909
Additions wNE 26,111
Sslanes et 3 Doeamitor 2012 ) RTIE_ZELZA=T8mEs SHOAY
Accumulated amortisation E- ¥

Balance at 1 January 2011 R_E——F— A —BO&E% (4,426)
Charge for the year FRNER (813)
Balance at 31 December 2011 R-E——F+-_A=+—HBHW&ER (5,239)
Charge for the year FRNER (944)
Celanes el & Beesmloor 202 T0 ROF_CHEA-A-TBMEHR 618
Carrying amounts REE

Balance at 31 December 2012 RZE—=—F+-A=+—HN#&EH 52,837
Balance at 31 December 2011 R-E——F+_A=+—HHOEH 27,670

(i

Lease prepayments represent cost of land use
rights in respect of land located in the PRC
with a lease period of 30 to 50 years when
granted.

Land use rights of De-Neng Power Plant,
Jing-Xing Power Plant and Blue Sky Power
Plant were pledged as collateral for bank
loans at the balance sheet date (see note

19(7)).

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 15 REWEB QA

The Company
NG|
2012 2011
Lt T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T BN R

Unlisted shares, at cost FEEMRG - TR AFE 358,044 358,044
The following list only shows the particulars of TREZVNTITEZEREFRELSE  BE
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, KEBEZHBATNE -B R AR
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of SN - PTERE D ERI AT EAR o

shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Place and date Percentage of Issued and fully
of establishment/ equity attributable paid-up/ Principal
Name of company Notes incorporation  to the Company registered capital activities
3L/ 5 R 3L RRARELM BRTRAR/
NCEE Bt WERBH BREFDL E &R TEEK
Direct Indirect
E& A &

Amber Bluesky Hong Kong 100% — HKD10,001/  Investment
(HK) Limited 26 June 2008 HKD20,000 holding
(“Amber Bluesky”)

BRHEKR(EHE) & 100% o 100018,/ REZR
AR A —EENE 20,0005 7T
(IEIMEX]) NAZTAE

Amber Jingxing (HK) Hong Kong 100% — HKD10,001/  Investment
Limited 26 June 2008 HKD20,000 holding
(“Amber Jingxing”)

FINRE(FHE) & 100% - 1000187L,/  REEK
ARRA —EETN\F 20,0007 7T
(MRIBRE]) NAZTH
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15 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Place and date

15 REMB QR #)

Percentage of

Issued and fully

of establishment/ equity attributable paid-up/ Principal
Name of company Notes incorporation  to the Company registered capital activities
3L/ 5 AR 3L RAEEM BERTRAR/
NCIEE Bt WHRAH RERDL NN TEEH
Direct Indirect
E# M &

Amber Deneng Hong Kong 100% - HKD10,001/  Investment
(HK) Limited 26 June 2008 HKD20,000 holding
(“Amber Deneng”)

RIREE(EE) & 100% = 100018,/ REZR
AR AT —EENF 20,0007 7T
(Ig3mnEael) NAZTRA

Amber Aniji (HK) Limited Hong Kong 100% — HKD1/HKD10,000 Investment
(“Amber Anji”) 2 September 2008 holding

RHLE(FE) & 100% — 1B/ REZER
AR AT —EENF 10,0004 7T
(IFEnzsE]) NAZH

Blue Sky Power Plant (i) The PRC — 100% USD17,171,400/ Power

15 December 2004 USD17,171,400 generation

EXEK B —  100%  17,171,400% 7T,/ %8

—_TTMEF 17,171,400% 1T
+ZA+hA

Jing-Xing Power Plant (i) The PRC — 100% USD16,660,000/ Power

6 January 2005 USD16,660,000 generation

REERK 1 —  100%  16,660,000% T,/ %8

—TTHE 16,660,000% 7T
—ARE

122
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15 INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 15 BEMWEB QR (#)

Place and date Percentage of Issued and fully
of establishment/ equity attributable paid-up/ Principal
Name of company Notes incorporation  to the Company registered capital activities
B/ AR 2 AARER BRTRAR/
NCIECE B & e R B REBS L dfER TEXK
Direct Indirect
B i
De-Neng Power Plant (iii) The PRC — 100% USD18,408,710/ Power
18 August 2004 USD18,408,710 generation
BEE R F —  100%  18,408,710% 7L,/ %E
—ETNE 18,408,710% 7T
NA+AR
Anji Power Plant (iii) The PRC = 100% UsD26,311,960/ Power
25 February 2011 USD51,700,000 generation
ZEEM i —  100%  26,311,960% 7,/ %E
—T——F 51,700,000 7T
—AZ+HH
Notes: BRE
0] Blue Sky Power Plant was established in the PRC as a sino- 0] EREBARFEKINFINGERE  RZT
foreign equity joint venture and became a wholly foreign- ZNFLtAZ+HEBRBINEBELE -
owned enterprise on 25 July 2008.
(ii) Jing-Xing Power Plant was established in the PRC as a sino- (ii) FRABBRARFERINFINGERE  RZT
foreign equity joint venture and became a wholly foreign- TSRFNARAKRINIBENRE -

owned enterprise on 5 September 2006.

(i) De-Neng Power Plant and Anji Power Plant were established (i) IEREEMRLEERANPTERINRINEER
in the PRC as sino-foreign equity joint ventures. ¥
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16 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16 BWRE SR HMRIE
The Group The Company
A%EH AT

2012 2011 2012 2011
Nl T F el —T—F
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
INCL Rl AKX TT EPNSLERA AXETT

Trade receivables W E 5318 39,524 27,986 —
Amounts due from A= PNGIE @

subsidiaries — — 243,542 179,451
Prepayments 81+ 708 61,751 47,073 - =
VAT recoverable JE W st B R 48,823 4,929 - —

Other receivables H o B U 51 T8 4,453 4,662 66 63
154,551 84,650 243,608 179,514

All of the trade and other receivables are expected FrERWE S R EMRIBEREBRIIN—F
to be recovered within one year. Credit term WU E - EFQARERIOKREZER -

granted to power grid companies is 30 days.

An ageing analysis of trade receivables of the AEBEWESRENRESITAT :
Group is as follows:

The Group
rEE
2012 2011
e e T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T & RN R

Not past due 7K #61 Hf 39,524 27,986
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17 PLEDGED DEPOSITS

Pledged deposits can be analysed as follows:

17 BEAER

Guarantee deposits for issuance of
commercial bills and banking facilities

BITAXRERRIRTT
EENREFR

EEFFERSTET -
The Group
rEE

2012 2011
- Pl —T——fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
N ARETT
64,542 47,084

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

All the balances of cash and cash equivalents at the
balance sheet date are cash at banks and on hand.

19 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS

18 RERBAEZEY

REER  MARSLRBESEEWER
RBROTERRFHEEE -

19 T EEE

The Group
rE
2012 2011
e = T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R AR®FTT
Current B &R
Secured bank loans EERMRETER 24,700 29,000
Unsecured bank loans MR ITE R 164,500 160,000
Current portion of non-current JERNER B HEMIBTTE AW
secured bank loans Bl HA 289 45,000 55,000
Current portion of non-current JERNHA MR ITE R
unsecured bank loans Bl BA =5 37,500 =
271,700 244,000
Non-current JE BN HA
Secured bank loans BEEMRITER 90,000 139,000
Unsecured bank loans MR ITE X 354,000 100,000
______________________________________ 444,000 o _2(%9_,0_09 i
715,700 483,000
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19

INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 19 FFEEE#E)

(Continued)

(i)  The secured bank loans as at 31 December i) —ZFB—=—F+-_A=+—HWAE
2012 carried interest at rates ranging from EHIRITE RILFEF E6.16%E
6.16% to 7.4025% (2011: 6.56% to 8.52%) 7.4025% (= F — — F : 6.56%%
per annum and were secured by the following 8.52%) &t B ' WA T35 & E 1E K
assets: o

The Group

rEE
2012 2011
g el T — — 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%¥ T N R
Carrying amounts of assets: BEREME :

Property, plant and equipment ME - -BERH 613,213 633,559
Lease prepayments EMAES 26,857 27,670
Pledged deposits EEAER 5,083 30,000

(i)

Unsecured bank loans as at 31 December
2012 carried interest at rates ranging from
6.3% to 7.544% (2011: 6.10% to 7.54%) per
annum. As at 31 December 2012, unsecured
bank loans of RMB304,000,000 was
guaranteed by China Wanxiang Holding Co.,
Ltd. (“Wanxiang Holding”, a related party) (see
note 27).

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

—E-——_F+_A=Z=+—HME
BEHRBRITERRFF E6.3%E
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19 INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS 19 FFEEE#E)
(Continued)
(i) The Group’s non-current bank loans were (i) ANEBFENBEITERNERHN
repayable as follows: T
The Group
rEE

2012 2011
= Nl T 7

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T IRNSRT

Within 1year  __ _________ il A 82,500 [TV
Over 1 year but less than 2 years B —F {2 W F K 90,000 45,000
Over 2 years but BBRMFEAFNA

less than 5 years 256,000 194,000
Over 5 years B R F 98,000 =

444,000 239,000

526,500 294,000
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20 CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 29 November 2011, the Company issued
convertible bonds (the “Convertible Bonds”) in the
aggregate principal amount of HKD124,800,000.
The subscriber of the Convertible Bonds is
Amber International Investment Co., Ltd. (“Amber
International”), the immediate holding company
of the Company. The principal terms of the
Convertible Bonds are as follows:

(@) Optional conversion

The holder of the Convertible Bonds
(“Bondholder”) may convert the Convertible
Bonds in integral multiples of HKD3,900,000
into fully paid ordinary shares of the Company
with a par value of HKDO0.10 each at an
initial conversion price (“Conversion Price”)
of HKD1.30 per share at any time from 29
November 2011 (the “Issue Date”) up to (and
including) 28 November 2016 (the “Maturity
Date”). The Conversion Price is subject to
adjustments in the manner set out in the
Convertible Bonds agreement as a result
of dilutive events. The maximum number
of ordinary shares that may be converted
is limited to the extent that following such
conversion, the shares held by public should
not be less than 25% of the then issued share
capital of the Company.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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20 A EBRES

W_ZE——F+—A=-+NH &AAQA
21T H 7N 4 B 5124,800,0005 JT B A] 82
mES([JERES]) - IBRESFN
REABARR A EZZER R A IARK
WREBBR AR (THRIABEE ) - aj@EifE
FHEBZEREOT

(a) TIEEBRR
EBELSFBEANESEFE
ADNAIR=_E—F+—A=+N
B(I&TEDE-_T—X E+—A
—+tAB(RBEBED(B2EZB)
IR EMERE BT RRE
(M2l E])E’1.308 T B8
753,900,000/ 7T B &1 & /) 7] 8 i
BEHFERAEERROARD B FK
HECI0B LA L @A - MARE K
SR EEHIRAEIRESHHERT
AR BT Rk
B R ABKRE R RFRD D
RARBERHEEITRAN255%E
PR o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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20 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(b) Redemption
Unless previously converted, purchased or
cancelled, the Company shall redeem the
Convertible Bonds at the principal amount and
pay all the outstanding interest on Maturity
Date.

As the functional currency of the Company is HKD,
the conversion of the Convertible Bonds will be
settled by exchange of a fixed amount of cash in
HKD with a fixed number of the Company’s equity
instruments. In accordance with the requirements
of IAS 39 Financial Instruments-Recognition and
Measurement, the Convertible Bonds agreement
needs to be separated into a liability component
consisting of the straight debt element and
redemption elements of the bonds, and an equity
component representing the options of the
Bondholder to convert the bonds into equity. The
proceeds received from the issue of the Convertible
Bonds have been split as follows:

()  Liability component represents the fair value
of the contractually determined stream of
cash flows discounted at the prevailing
market interest rate applicable to instruments
of comparable credit status and providing
substantially the same cash flows, on the
same terms, but without the conversion
features.

The liability component was subsequently
measured at amortised cost using an effective
interest rate of 9.72%.

(i) Equity component represents the conversion
options, which is determined by deducting the
fair value of the liability component from the
proceeds of issue of the Convertible Bonds as
a whole.

20 AEBRES(F)
(b) BEME
MRIEZRIDEH - BEHGEHE - K
N BIZEREH B K& %8 B O] 7] 82
BiES  Y2EINAEEFNS -

HRARABHEERE BB T A
BRESCTHEEHEZARAES T
ERBKEEEENETREEE - 1R
EERSEREREMT A — #
RRFAEBZRE  ABRESFBEED
REEHY (BREFNEREBK LD
KEOED) hEmmBy GEEFHEA
AEFERBREZEERE) BT
AEBRESHBERIDWT

() BEIXPDHIEHNETCHESRENR
FE FHERSTREREERBRE
EWIZMBRGHREERNBAERR
ME  BTERREUENTARE
FAHRITH ISR KA o

BER D ERIZEHEKAERERK

M EQ.72%:1 & -

(i) HERBOIRBBOREE - RBEBT
A ERE SN EEMRSHIRP IR
BEMBOINAFEERE °
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20 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued) 20 TEBREZRE)
The movement of the liability component and the EREFNEESI RERRHEH
equity component of the Convertible Bonds for the mr

year is set out below:

Liability Equity
component component Total
=R EEDa ®at

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR®TRT AR®TR

As at 29 November 2011 RZE——%+—A
— A 74,720 27,080 101,800
Transaction costs on issue BRI ERESD
of the Convertible Bonds R G A (2,802) (1,015) (3,817)
Interest capitalised RZZT——4F
during the period from +—A=t+hHBZE
29 November 2011 to —E——F+=H
31 December 2011 =+—HIHE
BRERDHE 527 — 527
Foreign currency INEME Z R
translation difference (627) = (627)
As at 31 December 2011 N-ZE——4F
and 1 January 2012 +—A=+—HXK
—E—-—F
—H—H 71,818 26,065 97,883
Interest capitalised during FRBERERHAHE
the year 7,105 — 7,105
Interest paid during the year FRENFE (1,220) — (1,220)
Interest payable during FRERF B
the year (1,012) — (1,012)
Foreign currency ERZER
translation difference 182 — 182
As at 31 December 2012 RZT——F
+=-—A=+— 26,065 102,938
No conversion, redemption or purchase or ( E_FT——_F+_-_A=+—8 " HE
cancellation of the Convertible Bonds has taken E BB ERTHEHTERES -

place up to 31 December 2012.
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N

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and bill payables

Amounts due to
subsidiaries

Other payables and
accrued expenses
(see note 23)

ENESHER
ENEE

& KT B A A
A
HAth FE A FRE K
JERT R
(RI5E23)

21

BNEZKEMRIE

The Group
rEE

2012
—_E—_F
RMB’000
ARBTR

128,880

40,580

169,460 43,816

An ageing analysis of trade and bill payables of the

Group is as follows:

2011

— ks
RMB’000
AREFTTT

20,906

22,910

AEBERMNEZRAMENREZRER

DT

Within 3 months

Over 3 months but less than 6 months

=EAA

HE=EAEREARN

The Company
NN

2012 2011
el = F
RMB’000 RMB’000
NGB ARETT
10,690
4,709
15,399

The Group
rEE

2012 2011
e e T 7
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBEFIT
86,741 12,628
42,139 8,278
128,880 20,906
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23

22 DEFERRED REVENUE 22 EEW =
The Group
g
2012 2011
- Pat- M T — &
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T N R
Government grants X AT #66 Bh 11,378 —
The Group was awarded a compensation TEREREREEZESeREWE L
amounting to RMB11,435,000 from Anji Economic WERAEARERLEHTERMAAEE
Development Zone Administrative Committee for BE 8 A R % 11,435,0007T ° 1@ 8L ¥ 45 #
its acquisition of the land use right for construction RARLEWZS » WL (FE PR ZEE
of Anji Power Plant. The grant is first recognized as FEl 88 -
deferred revenue and is amortised over the grant
period of the land use right.
LONG-TERM PAYABLES 23 REIENFE
The Group
rEH
2012 2011
—_E-——F —_F——
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT R AR T
Payable for purchase of property, BEME  BERZED
plant and equipment JE 1< SR 18 14,369 18,503

The balance represents payable for the purchase
of an imported generator equipment. The
nominal value of the purchase consideration of
RMB60,448,000 is payable over a period of 10
years. The amount has been measured at fair
value being future cash outflows discounted at
the prevailing interest rates as at the respective
reporting dates.

Current portion of long-term payables of
RMB6,099,000 (2011: RMB7,131,000) has been
included in other payables and accrued expenses
(see note 21).

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED RIAGERBIRA A

EHRAEBEENRSRENEMNKE -
BEREEEAAREG0,448,0007T -
ARI0FARMNE - ZeBEERATE
(BB HRE B PNERFERTIRG
HERERL)ETE -

FHENREBNENBHIS ARK
6,099,000 T(Z T — —F : AR
7,131,0007T) B 5 A E fib & 15 5k 12 & fE
A X (R E21) -
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EX-EBERE
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) BEHO2EH
The reconciliation between the opening and AEEGAERSHOFYHEFER
closing balances of each component of the MR HEREHENGEEEREEX -
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the RARER RIS FVERERZ
consolidated statement of changes in equity. FEFBOT

Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out

below:
The Company VNN
Share Share  Contributed Capital ~ Translation Retained Total
capital premium surplus reserve reserve eamings equity
KA RipiEE U EAGE ERGEE REBF B
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Wiz ARMTT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
At1 January 2011 R=Z--%-5-8 36,582 9,724 358,044 - 4,470) 12,841 495,721
Changes in equity for 2011: “E--FEREE:
Profit for the year FREF - - - - - 30,631 30,631
Other comprehensive income E2ERA - - - - (6,160) - 6,160)
Total comprehensive income FRREHNARE
for the year - - - - (6,160) 30,631 24,471
Dividends to equity shareholders IR E & & 24(d) - - - - - (20,697) (20,697)
Equity component of NEARSNERHS
convertible bonds 20 - - - 26,065 - - 26,065
At 31 December 2011 R=B--%+Z8

Sr=lE 36,582 92,724 358,044 26,065 (10,630) 22,775 525,560
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EXR -RHBERERE (&)
(Continued)
(@) Movements in components of equity (a) P28 (&)
(Continued)
The Company (Continued) KAT(E)

Share Share

capital premium

[N ROEE

\GcH  RMB’000 RMB’000

Contributed
surplus
0N
RMB’000

Translation

Capital

Retained Total
earnings
REEF
RMB’000

reserve
Ehffk
RMB’000

reserve
ESf R
RMB’000

equity
BRAE
RMB’000

UGl ARETT ARMTR AR¥TR AR%Tn AR%Tn ARETR AR%T:x
At1 January 2012 R-Z-=F-5-R 92,724 358,044 26,065 (10,630) 22,775 595,560
Changes in equity for 2012: “E-CEEREE:
Loss for the year FEREE (10,233) (10,233)
Other comprehensive income HE2EKA - 2
Total comprehensive income FAREHNALE
for the year (10,233) (10,211)
Dividends to equity shareholders 1 2 ik &A% & 24(d) (8,403) (8,403)
At 31 December 2012 R=B-Z§+=8
=t+-8 92,724 358,044 26,065 (10,608) 4,139 506,946
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS

(Continued)

(b) Share capital

Authorised:

Ordinary shares of

EE

BREE0.10E T

HKDO.10 each )& A
Ordinary shares, B TRHAR
issued and ZER
fully paid
At 1 January R—A—H
At 31 December B+ _-FA=+—H

24

BEX - ERKRE )

(b) BA&

The Group and the Company

ARERADF

2012 2011

—=_

No. of
shares

RAEE

1,000,000,000

415,000,000

415,000,000

=F —F——F

Amount No. of Amount
RMB’000 shares RMB’000
kx| &H
AR®T e E ARETTT

1,000,000,000 88,050

415,000,000 36,582

415,000,000 36,582
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 BXR - FERRE#)
(Continued)
(b) Share capital (Continued) (b) BE&E (&)

()  The Company was incorporated in ) ZZTEZENFALANB XA
the Cayman Islands on 8 September AEREBEHSFMKTL &
2008 with an authorised share capital 7E f% AN A& 380,000 7% 7T ¢
of HKD380,000 divided into 3,800,000 /3,800,000 % & I% HE {E0.10
ordinary shares of par value HKDO0.10 BILTHEBRR —ZTTNF
each. On 8 September 2008, one NANE BRREAER
share was allotted and issued to the BRETRERMD  ARE
initial subscriber and was subsequently Az MHEZE TR
transferred to Amber International on B —_BEFENF=ZA =+
the same date. On 20 March 2009, B ARQAMAIKE IEl Fffé HE %
two shares were allotted and issued RETMBRRD  AEER
to Amber International to settle the RINE AR R E S 583
consideration for the transfer of Blue Sky RERXEHRERESE V )
Power Plant and Jing-Xing Power Plant KE - ZZETANFRAT—
to Amber Bluesky and Amber Jingxing = N/NSST R B3 sl R A T 5
respectively. On 11 June 2009, one &?’*ﬁ—ﬁxﬂxf’ﬁ A E W
share was allotted and issued to Amber RIAEEEEREEETRAON
International to settle the consideration & o

for the transfer of De-Neng Power Plant
to Amber Deneng.

Pursuant to a resolution passed by the BERNRDAEFHE—K
then sole shareholder of the Company RRZZETAFEFSNATN
on 18 June 2009, the authorised HBEBMNRER X2 A
share capital of the Company was sk F B% AN B 380,000 & T
increased from HKD380,000 divided (% /A& 3,800,000 f% & @ A%)
into 3,800,000 ordinary shares # Z 100,000,000 7 JT (5D &
to HKD100,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 4% & i@ %)
1,000,000,000 ordinary shares.

(i)  Pursuant to a written resolution of the (i) BEARAERFMNME KR
then sole shareholder of the Company R-ZEBEZNFENA+N\HBHBE
passed on 18 June 2009, 299,999,996 BRNEAAZR BEBHR
shares of HKD0.10 each in the 17 & {B B& # 30,000,000 7% 7T
Company were issued at par value on (B8 K AR ¥ 26,446,000
9 July 2009 to the Company’s existing TTIBEERAN AN  RZF
shareholder as at 18 June 2009 by ZRNFELtALBMARQRCZ
way of capitalisation of HKD30,000,000 TENFAAATNABWNEAE
(equivalent to RMB26,446,000) from the % R % T {8 ¥ 17 299,999,996
share premium account. % &R E{EO0.1078 TR AR A A

Bfn e
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(b) Share capital (Continued)

)

On 10 July 2009, 100,000,000 ordinary
shares of HKDO0.10 each were issued
at a price of HKD1.66 per share
under the share offer. The proceeds
of HKD10,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB8,814,000) representing the par
value, were credited to the Company’s
share capital. The remaining proceeds
of HKD156,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB137,500,000), before the share
issue expenses, were credited to the
share premium account.

On 31 July 2009, the sole underwriter
of the share offer exercised the over-
allocation option for the issuance of
15,000,000 ordinary shares of HKDO0.10
each at HKD1.66 per share. The
proceeds of HKD1,500,000 (equivalent
to RMB1,322,000) representing the par
value, were credited to the Company’s
share capital. The remaining proceeds
of HKD23,400,000 (equivalent to
RMB20,629,000), before the share issue
expenses, were credited to the share
premium account.

24 EXR-RERBRE#E)

(b) KA ()

(i)

—“TTAFEATH BE
EHEEZRSR166ETH
8 & % 77 100,000,000 A% &
BREEIOETHEBER -
HERKM®EENRSK
18 10,000,000 & ;T (HH & ©»
A R #8,814,000 7T) 5t A &K
REAIMBRA B TARNK
BHBETHIWNB KA
156,000,000 7% 7T (2 & B A
R # 137,500,000 7T) 5t A B%
mmEER -

—EThAhFLA=Z+—8 "
BOBENBREBHEHEITHE
MR IR E - EEAR1.6678
JT R (B #5277 15,000,000 % &
KEBECIOELHE®AE -
HE RGO EEFTSEHIE
1,500,000 T (HHE W AR
#1,322,0007T) 5t AR B Y
A - 2 T RN RGBT
2 &9 AT 1§ 5K 3H 23,400,000
7T (8 & K A R #20,629,000
TC)ET AR R ER ©
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 EX -HBEERKRE(#)
(Continued)
(c) Reserves (c) B
(i) Share premium () RzE
Pursuant to a written resolution of the BEARGEROMKE —RR
then sole shareholder of the Company R-ZEBEZNFENA+N\HBHBE
passed on 18 June 2009, 299,999,996 BRNEAAZR BEBHR
shares of HKDO0.10 each in the 15 & {8 B & 30,000,000 7% JT
Company were issued at par value on (8 & ® A R ¥ 26,446,000
9 July 2009 to the Company’s existing TIBEEERN AR - RZF
shareholder as at 18 June 2009 by ZENFLtANEHBARF =
way of capitalisation of HKD30,000,000 ZTAFEAATN\BNRE
(equivalent to RMB26,446,000) from the % R ¥ T {8 ¥ 17 299,999,996
share premium account. i% &R E{E0.1078 TR AR A A
R o
On 10 July 2009, 100,000,000 ordinary —E2EENFEATHER
shares of HKDO0.10 each in the Company BRMHBEEZER1.66HE
were issued at HKD1.66 per share JC B {& #% ¥ 17 100,000,000
under the share offer. The excess of f% & i% ™M 1E 0.10 %8 ;t By &
the proceeds totalling HKD156,000,000 AREIERKR e RIIKREKRG
(equivalent to RMB137,500,000) over BTERMNMERNELS
the nominal value of the total number of 156,000,000 78 7T (8 & B A
ordinary shares issued, before the share R % 137,500,000 7T ) iR # Ffr
issue expenses, were credited to the BOTETRARLHEEDENH
share premium account of the Company. BB ARDRNKGE
An  additional 15,000,000 ordinary RZEBEEANFELA=1+—
shares of HKDO0.10 each in the Company B BIEBRELERER
were issued at HKD1.66 per share on 31 A% 1.66% 7T 1T A2 A FEHN
July 2009 pursuant to the over-allocation 15,000,000 & & % H 1E0.10
option. The excess of the proceeds BT ERK - KB KRMD
totaling HKD23,400,000 (equivalent to BOTEBRAMNFERELE
RMB20,629,000) over the nominal value 23,400,000 L (FHE R AR
of the total number of ordinary shares # 20,629,000 7T ) B %1 AT 3 17
issued, before the share issue expenses, TERBREMENEE B
were credited to the share premium FFARRAINRGO BER -
account of the Company.
The application of the share premium BOHREBENEAXFSH
account is governed by the Companies SREVERE

Law of the Cayman Islands.
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
(c) Reserves (Continued) (c) f&E&E (&)
(i) Capital reserve (i) BEXHZHE
BARBRIEATAR

24 EXR-RERBRE#E)

Capital reserve comprises the following:

the aggregate of paid-in capital
of the companies comprising
the Group as at 1 January 2009,
after elimination of investment in
subsidiaries;

the difference between the total
amount of consideration paid and
the total carrying value of non-
controlling interests acquired, for
acquisition of 47% equity interest in
De-Neng Power Plant by the Group
in 2009;

capital contribution by Amber
International of a dividend
receivable from De-Neng Power
Plant in 2009; and

the amount allocated to the
unexercised equity component
of Convertible Bonds issued
by the Company recognised in
accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for Convertible
Bonds in note 2(i)(iv).

— XAEBBETRAAR_-ZE
ZAFE-—A—HOEH
RAER(CERMBER
AZREHH)

— AXEBR_ZTAEF
Uy BE 1= BE | BRA7 %N #E
B TR BB
WHEIEERER ZER®E
REMNERE

— RHEBRR_-_ZETAF
15 & U5 75 B B R B BB
TE R

— REBEME2)(vTE A E
BESFEANEFERE
RARBHTZAHE
BEZORITEE DS
DESENTHE -
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS 24 BEX - REERRE#)
(Continued)
(c) Reserves (Continued) (c) f#&fE (&)
(iii) Merger reserve (i) &t E
Merger reserve represents the excess EHEBEERNERETHE
of the aggregate of paid-in capital of RAIBRBAEBRR =TT
the subsidiaries comprising the Group FRNAEmEKRCEMA
pursuant to a reorganisation completed ([EARDEHOBRRNEER
in June 2009 for the Listing (the A RBFTRE(BNARR A
“Reorganisation”) of the Group over the EARBITBEITRMGAMTEE)
g o

consideration paid by the Company, 2
representing the nominal value of the

shares issued by the Company in

exchange thereof.

(iv) Contributed surplus (iv) #AEE
Contributed  surplus represents the BMARBEREBERAERE -
excess of the fair value of the shares RIARERIRIAE REGEE
of Amber Deneng, Amber Jingxing EFEEETMNIRBER I
and Amber Bluesky determined on the MRERFERERRMNDRE
basis of the consolidated net assets HBEHNATFERAARA
of Amber Deneng, Amber Jingxing EERHBMETROMNEE
and Amber Bluesky at the date of the 2 ERE o
Reorganisation over the nominal value
of the shares issued by the Company in
exchange thereof.

(v) Statutory surplus reserve (v) ZEEBGRE
Statutory surplus reserves were FEERBBRESREPBME
established in accordance with the R E R 5 R DA K A R B AR
relevant PRC rules and regulations YHAEEETS AR
and the articles of association of those BERMBAUEZT - FHEBX
companies comprising the Group EREESTSHE -

which are established in the PRC.
Appropriations to the reserves were
approved by the respective boards of

directors.

For the entity concerned, statutory BRARRIMNECRABFER
surplus reserves can be used to make AREEATEFEAEE (W
good previous years’ losses, if any, B)  MuRKEERBERE
and may be converted into capital in bk & AR B RE
proportion to the existing equity interests MERKRITFEIREMELRD
of investors, provided that the balance 25% °

after such conversion is not less than
25% of the registered capital.
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)

(c) Reserves (Continued)
(vi) Distributability of reserves

Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company may be
applied for payment of distributions or
dividends to shareholders provided that
immediately following the date on which
the distribution or dividend is proposed
to be paid, the Company is able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

The aggregate amount of distributable
reserves of the Company as at 31
December 2012 was RMB96,863,000
(2011: RMB115,499,000).

(d) Dividends

(i)

Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the year

24

BX - fERRE )

(c) f#E (&)

(vi) TERZRFEE
BERSEEQRE AR
ARHDBEERTARAKE
EEDIRE AR E - 2
BIEHEAPRERI I AR EE
B ARA BB NDITR
BEEKBRINBNESR -

PN —E—ZF+=
A=+ —B®a#5 Ik
#H®EE A AR 096,863,000
T(ZE——F : ARK
115,499,000 ) °

d BE
(i) FRAEMNKLAEzRKREK
A

2012 2011
—E——F ===
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T NG
Interim dividend declared FAREIRFHRKE
during the year of BREET
HKD nil per share —T——F:
(2011: HKDO.03 per share) & 0%0.03/8 7T) 10,223
Final dividend proposed REBPERBRERPRE
after the reporting date of B R0.0158 7T
HKDO0.015 per share —EFE——%:
(2011: HKDO0.025 per share) & f%0.025/8 7t ) 8,403

The final dividend proposed after the
reporting date has not been recognised
as a liability at the reporting date.

BEAHRERRAKEL
BERBREAMBRLAE-
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24 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(Continued)
(d) Dividends (Continued) d BE (&)

(i) REAHMEHENELEE
wRR L - FERE

24 EXR-RERRE#E)

(i) Dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company
attributable to the previous
financial year approved during the
year

2012 2011
N = F

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT v N

Final dividends in respect of the R ER#LIER

previous financial year, — M BFEARARE
approved during the 1%0.0257% 7T
year of HKDO0.025 per share —E——%F:

(2011: HKDO.03 per share) & A80.03% 7T ) 10,474

142

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the
board of directors’ meeting on 23 March
2012, dividends of HKD10,375,000
(equivalent to RMB8,403,000) were
declared and HKD2,875,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,322,000) were paid on 22 June
2012.

Pursuant to a resolution passed at the
board of directors’ meeting on 25 March
2011, dividends of HKD12,450,000
(equivalent to RMB10,474,000) were
declared and fully paid on 24 June 2011.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

BE—_ZE——F=ZA=_+=
HEEeSRBBNARE
= 5K % 8 10,375,000 /B
7t (#8 & N A R % 8,403,000
J0)  E # 2,875,000 7T (1B
ERARY2322,0007T)E R
—E-——FXAZ+ZHX
e

BE-_ZT——F=ZA=-+5A
HEETegaRBNLAE
= 5k & & 12,450,000 7
7T (F8 8 M A R #10,474,000
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management
Overview

The Group has exposure to the following risks
arising from financial instruments:

o credit risk
o liquidity risk
° market risk

This note presents information about the Group’s
exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s
objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing risk, and the Group’s management
of capital.

(a) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to
the Group if a customer or counterparty
to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Group’s receivables from customers.

Exposure to credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Zhejiang Electric Power Corporation and
Huzhou Electric Power Bureau are the
customers of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2012.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each
financial asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position.

25 £FT A

Bt 35 L By B
HEE
AEEEHREERTENNATERR

s FEEAR
s RBELAR
s MHER

AMEE2IAEEMEY Ll KRR
BB AREGFEREERARZH
BOBREMEF ARAEEZERE
o

(a) EEEE
EERBESRIACZERIRS
BORBITEHNEEM S AEEA
XMBERZAR  TEREASK
BEWREFREA -

1= B /a %

AEENEERRIEREREKE
SREMKIE - EREEHTEE
BER  UHEEERZEEERAR -

ALENRERAMNENBRAR
EEE—_T-——Ft+-A=1+—H
LEEENEF

EERRAGE M BN RIS
TRMEEMNKREERR
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

Exposure to credit risk (Continued)

Credit risk for power plants in the PRC
power industry is concentrated on a limited
number of power grid companies. However,
the management, having considered the
strong financial background and good credit
worthiness of the power grid companies,
believe there is no significant credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade and other trade receivables are set
out in note 16.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will
encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset.

The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is
to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities
when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable
losses or risking damage to the Group’s
reputation.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements
and its compliance with any lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

25

The following are the contractual maturities of
financial liabilities, including estimated interest
payments and excluding the impact of netting

agreements:

The Group

Interest-bearing borrowings &t B f& &
Trade and other payables B E 5 &

H A 5IE
Long-term payables R B
Convertible Bonds AERESs

SRTE#)

(b) HEBEELEEE)
ATREMABENGOIMBER -
BIREGEAEMR - BALEST R

HHHOYE
7 5 B

Year ended 31 December 2012

BE-S-"H+t-A=+-HLEFE

Carrying
amount

FREE
RMB’000

ARBTR
715,700
169,460

14,369
76,873

976,402

Total Within one
undiscounted year or on More than
cash flow demand one year

AFRAE —FAR
REAE RERE BBE-%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTR AR®Tx

872,337 295,832 576,505
169,460 169,460 —

18,666 — 18,666
109,121 2,024 107,097

1,169,584 467,316 702,268

Year ended 31 December 2011

BE-S——F+-A=t—HI5E

Total Within one

Carrying  undiscounted year or More than
amount cash flow on demand one year
AFERE —FRH

FREE mERE R E R HBilm—F

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTRT ARETRT AR®TR

Interest-bearing borrowings it B f& & 483,000 574,213 255,274 318,939
Trade and other payables R E 5 &

H fth 308 43,816 43,816 43,816 —

Long-term payables RHEMFIE 18,503 24,764 = 24,764

Convertible Bonds A B 5 71,818 111,125 2,024 109,101

617,137 753,918 301,114 452,804
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Company

25 €@mIA®)

(b) H“EBELEEE)

AR F

Year ended 31 December 2012

BE-ZT——f+-HA=1+—-HLEE

Total Within one
Carrying undiscounted year or More than
amount cash flow on demand one year
AFRRE —FRY
REE REHE RERE BR-—fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE AR%®Tn AR%®Tr AR%Tx
Convertible Bonds AERES 76,873 109,121 2,024 107,097
Year ended 31 December 2011
BE-_Z——F+_-_HA=+—-HItEE
Total Within one
Carrying  undiscounted year or More than
amount cash flow on demand one year
AFRFESE —FRY
REE MEHRE R E Kk HBiB—F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTn AR¥®Trt AR®TR
Convertible Bonds AERES 71,818 111,125 2,024 109,101

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED RIAGERBIRA A
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Market rate risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market
prices, such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates, will affect the Group’s income
or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The objective of market risk
management is to manage and control market
risk exposures within acceptable parameters,
while optimising the return.

(i)

Currency risk

RMB is not freely convertible into
foreign currencies. All foreign exchange
transactions involving Renminbi must
take place through the People’s Bank
of China or other institutions authorised
to buy and sell foreign exchange. The
exchange rate adopted for the foreign
exchange transactions are the rates of
exchange quoted by the People’s Bank
of China that are determined largely
by supply and demand. Changes in
exchange rate affect the RMB value
of sales proceeds of products that are
denominated in foreign currencies.

25 €@ ITRA(#)

(c) TEFEREE
™ %5 B B 46 i (B (1 20 5B E X K2
MNER)EHZEAKE WA IR
TRIAEBENRR HHRERE
EMBERRBLRBHRE - B
REFHSEARENEZBERA -

) E¥WER
AR® AT B @R #TKID
B-MEPRARBENINE
RpHEBBATEARRKIT
HEMEREREREINERH
BET - IEXZEATE
ARBITAARAER - %
FEXTRHHREE - E
EHBERTENINETED
EmHEMBSARKEERE -
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 25 €RITRA(#)
(c) Market rate risk (Continued) (c) THFERPEE)

(i) Currency risk (Continued)
Exposure to currency risk
The following table details the Group’s
exposure at the reporting date to
currency risk arising from recognised
assets or liabilities denominated in
a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they
relate.

(i)

Trade and other payables BB 5 K EMKIA

Gross balance sheet exposure BEBEXRFRABE
k)

The following significant exchange rates
applied during the year:

Usbh ETT

148 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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2012 2011
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UsD’000 USD’000
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(205)
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Market rate risk (Continued)

U]

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

A 5 percent strengthening of the RMB
against the following currency at 31
December would have increased profit
before tax by the amounts shown
below. This analysis assumes that all
other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2011.

25 €@ ITRA(#)
(c) THEFEEEE)

U]

Effect on profit before tax
usD ET

5 R B A1 A A 3

XS
L

A 5 percent weakening of the RMB
against the above currency at 31
December would have had the equal but
opposite effect on the above currency to
the amounts shown above, on the basis
that all other variables remain constant.

E¥ER(E
SRR T
Rt+tZA=+—8 ' AR®
HTlEEAERES F B
Al i R 3E N5 & BB 1E 0 - 3%
DM TIBREBAEMEEH (5
DT
HHEERE - T — —F K
B&E—H% -

2012 2011
e el = 7
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T N R
53

EFMEEBESERTEDN
BRAT AI+=—A=+—8
ARBL L E% R ENS
BEiBEY LR EREL
SHREERNEE -
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Market rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

Cash and cash equivalents, pledged
bank deposits, interest-bearing
borrowings and Convertible Bonds are
the Group’s major types of financial
instruments subject to interest rate risk.
Cash and cash equivalents are with fixed
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to
2.6% per annum for the year ended 31
December 2012 (2011: 0.01% to 1.31%
per annum). Pledged bank deposits are
placed to satisfy conditions for issuance
of commercial bills and bank facilities
granted to the Group, with fixed interest
rates ranging from 0.385% to 3.3% per
annum for the year ended 31 December
2012 (2011: 2.75% to 3.3% per annum).

Profile

At the reporting date, the interest rate
profile of the Group’s interest-bearing
financial instruments was as follows:

25 €RITRA(#)
TEFEEE(E)

(c)

(i)

Fixed rate borrowings EEE
Variable rate borrowings FEfE

I

\
/

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA

R = @k
AEBGEMNEXR KRN
MITATEZHEABRERS
BReEEY BEART
TR TEBERTERE
5 - BHE-_ZT——-—%F+_-A
—+t—HIEFE -B& KR
CEBEYHNBETFENEN T
0.01%ZE2.6% (=T ——4F :
FHMEOOI%E131%) » B
KFRITTERRATARE
ERBITRAESEFTERIT
FEEMNKEENSR BE22%
——&E#+-A=+—B1t#E
E & E E FHMENF0.385%
E33%(ZE——F : FFI=X
2.75%%=3.3%) °

#Ex
RBEBH  NEEOEE
TR TANMEFERMOT

2012 2011
el = 7
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T N
196,073 111,818
596,500 443,000
792,573 554,818
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(c) Market rate risk (Continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed
rate borrowings

The Group does not account for any
fixed rate financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a
change in interest rates at the reporting
date would not affect profit or loss.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable
rate borrowings

As at 31 December 2012, it is estimated
that a general increase/decrease of
100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the
Group’s profit after tax for the year and
consolidated equity by approximately
RMB2,981,000 (2011: RMB3,562,000).

The sensitivity analysis above indicates
the instantaneous change in the Group’s
profit after tax and consolidated equity
that would arise assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at
the reporting date and had been applied
to re-measure those floating rate non-
derivative instruments held by the Group
which expose the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk at the reporting date.
The impact on the Group’s profit after
tax and consolidated equity is estimated
as an annualised impact on interest
expense of such a change in interest
rates. The analysis is performed on the
same basis for 2011.

25 €@ ITRA(#)
(c) THEFEEEE)

(i)

FRE R (E
E BB FIEHBZ DT

AEBYEEBBRIL AT
EERAESERAE At
RBEEAHNNEEHTE

/. = N/
HEBEG -

N

EBEEE % E R

=

o/a

=T — = + = A
=+ — 8 EHHA X
ZeF#E T 00 @ E
2 MATEEMEHER
g A AEEFAMNRK
RemA ka6 #E=sB
WY AR

2,981,000 T(=Z & — — 4 :
AR #3,562,0007T) °

EXHREITBER  BER

REFAEAEBMFERR
EEHSCAEERHRER
BN R R B #) HEBEE B IETT
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BENERIXNEEZE -
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25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 25 @I R(#)
(d) Capital management (d) BEXEE

152

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for
equity shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain
a balance between the higher equity
shareholders’ return that might be possible
with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound
capital position, and makes adjustments to
the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure
on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio
is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total debt
(including all interest-bearing borrowings as
well as Convertible Bonds and long-term
payables, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash and
cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
equity attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position, plus net
debt. The Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to equity shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders or
sell assets to reduce debt.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(d) Capital management (Continued)

(e)

The gearing ratio as at 31 December is as
follows:

25 €@ ITRA(#)

Gearing ratio

BEEARLL R

Fair value

The carrying amounts of significant financial
assets and liabilities approximate their
respective fair values as at 31 December 2012
(same for 2011).

26 COMMITMENTS

(M

Capital commitments in respect of purchase
of property, plant and equipment outstanding

(d BEXEE#E)

Rt+t-_A=+—HBMa@EEAL X

(L N
2011
—F——%F
43.23%

(e) AFHE
R—ZE——F+=-_A=+—H &
ReMEENBENRAERES
BAYEMRA(ZE——FHA) -

26 RIE

() REBEFETER TERKEY
BHRERBBERENNBEDE K

at the year end but not provided for in the EREHEEARRE FBRUET :
consolidated financial statements were as
follows:
2012 2011
g S gl — T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTIT
Authorised but not contracted for B2 & #E1B &R 5T 49 186,454 487,238
Contracted for REED 167,328 389,930
353,782 877,168
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26 COMMITMENTS (Continued) 26 AE#E)
(i)  Non-cancellable operating lease rentals were (i) ERHTAHELCEHEE2 N
payable as follows: N

2012 2011
N N T 7
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET & NS R

Less than 1 year PR —F 690
Over 1 year but less than 5 years BB —FERAFNK 700
1,390
27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 BERRS
For the year ended 31 December 2012, BHE-_T——_F+-A=+—HL1#HF
transactions with the following parties are B -EBTIANTZREBRRBBERR
considered as related party transactions. The S o UTARAEBETIBEERTNFEA
following is a summary of the principal related party NETE2REIIHIME -

transactions carried out by the Group with the
below related parties for the year.

Name of party Relationship

BELER 2RES

Amber International Immediate holding company of the Company
B3 B ER RARNEZEZERAA

Wanxiang Holding Fellow subsidiary

&R EEIUEYNS

Wanxiang Finance Co., Ltd (“Wanxiang Finance”) Fellow subsidiary

EnyBERAR ( [BRMBE] ) EEA VNS

1854 AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 271 BERRZ (&)
(Continued)
(a) Significant related party transactions (a) HEBEAESETHNERBELIRZR

and balances with related parties

Particulars of significant transactions between
the Group and the above related parties

EER
AEEETRBEESRBE_F
——F T+ A=t —HILFENE
AR GHBWOT :

2012 2011
il S gl — T
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T INGR

during the year ended 31 December 2012 is
as follows:
Issue of Convertible Bonds ROUEBRES

Amber International (see note 20)  ¥F I B & ( B Bf 7£20)

101,800

180,000 =

180,000 =

304,000 =

Loans from REUTHEFNER

Wanxiang Finance & (A Bf 1%

Loans repaid to BEERTFUTHES

Wanxiang Finance & A B 7

Unsecured bank LTHEELTERDN
loans guaranteed by EIEMBITER

Wanxiang Holding &\ R

Interests paid to FFUTRESHHNE

Amber International % 30 B R

Wanxiang Finance & m B

1,220 =
1,374 =

2,594 =

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 =Z—Z=—FEH&

1855



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B 755 i 2= BT A

27 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 27 BERRZ (#)

(Continued)

(a) Significant related party transactions (a) HBEEFETHNEABEIRS
and balances with related parties R (E)
(Continued)
The balance arising from the significant Hz—_Z——%+-_A=+—8"
transactions between the Group and the AEEE FRBEINERRZAON
above related parties as at 31 December EXNGEBRAT

2012 is as follows:

2012 2011
YR Y = =
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%E T IR

Amber International IR I8 B R
— Convertible bonds — ABRKRES 71,818
— Dividend payable — BN E =
— Interest payable — BRI B -
71,818
(b) Key management personnel b) TEEEAEMS
remuneration
2012 2011
= =t T —F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR% T N

Short-term employee benefits EHEERA 2,565 3,266
Post-employment benefits BB 12 E A 140 180

2,705 3,446
Total remuneration is included in “personnel 4 sasEst A8 TRA | (R KT
costs” (see note 5(ii)). 5(ii)) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

After the reporting date, the directors proposed a
final dividend on 22 March 2013. Further details are
disclosed in note 24(d).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTIES

As at 31 December 2012, the directors of the
Company consider the immediate and ultimate
controlling parties of the Company to be Amber
International and GDZ International Limited,
respectively, both of which are incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands. These entities do not produce
financial statements available for public use.

28

29

HEAREE

WEBHE EER_TE—=F=A
“t-HESRERPRE c Hi:F1E
R 24 E -

HERKRERS

KRABEERAE KNZT——F+=A
=+ —HB  ARAMNEEBERTKIER
FHRARIFABEER X GDZ International
Limited (39 R BB R XA S ML) -
ZERNAWERRA A FE RN R
=
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30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 30 BE-E——-—HE+-HA=+—HL
NEW STANDARDS AND FEEEMEMREN E’Jﬂ%%T il
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET STHARRE T RS &

EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2012

Up to the date of issue of these financial HEZSHBHREATIZBEE  HEe
statements, the IASB has issued a number of HAZESEEMEBEE T —= E‘f’ -
amendments and five new standards which are not A=+—BLFEMH *Exﬂlﬂfﬁ%&%
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2012 ERENHAFEAZZEBITI RAE
and which have not been adopted in these financial TR - AN EFEHEBESET
statements. These include the following which may 5| & 18 -

be relevant to the Group:

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BUTHEHSH 2%
BRI S EIR £
Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of financial statements — 1 July 2012
Presentation of items of
other comprehensive income
B g ERIE 15 (BRIA) WEBHRRNHZ] — HMEEKRAIER S —T——F+tH—H
EXdl
IFRS 10 Consolidated financial statements 1 January 2013
B B 755 i 5 YE RN S5 1055% A B mE —ET—=%—H—H
IFRS 11 Joint arrangements 1 January 2013
B PR B S R 5 AR B S8 1 155% BERH —T—=%—H—H
IFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other entities 1 January 2013
I B 75 e YE BN BB 1 255% REAMEBER 2 KR —E—=F—H—H
IFRS 13 Fair value measurement 1 January 2013
IR B 755 i e YE RN S5 1 355% AHERTE —ET—=%—H—H
IAS 27 Separated financial statements (2011) 1 January 2013
B &5t ERIE275R BY K wmEK (ZF——%F) —E—=%—HF—H
IAS 28 Investments in associates and 1 January 2013
joint ventures
B & 5t 2ERI 52857 REERRIREEREIRE —E—=F—H—H
(Z2——%F)
Revised IAS 19 Employee benefits 1 January 2013
IR s ERIFE195% (KEF]) EERH —ET—=%—H—H
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30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 30 BE=E——-—F+=-HA=+—HLt
NEW STANDARDS AND FECHEMEERENMWIEET ~
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET FEARZRENTRETE &)

EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2012 (Continued)

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

BUTHE#zSHZ2#
RS B EXK
Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle 1 January 2013
BRI REEN _EENFE_T——FARNFRESCE —T—=%—H—H
Amendments to IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures — 1 January 2013
Disclosures — Offsetting financial
assets and liabilities
B R B 755 R 5 YE BN SE 7 55% TRIE  KE — RE — BiHepEE —E—=%—HF—H
CCHEN) HEE
Amendments to IAS 32 Financial instruments: Presentation — 1 January 2014
Offsetting financial assets and
financial liabilities
B @t ERIE329% (BF]AR) 2RI A : 2% — HHeRnEERSH —E—-MFE—-HF—H
BE
IFRS 9 Financial instruments 1 January 2015
B R B 75 S 5 ZE RI B 955 SMITA —T-hF—H—H
(EFTA)
The Group is in the process of making an AEBEAEF G ESBIEBRE g RE
assessment of what the impact of these RAEENEE BHZEBAAL  AN&E
amendments is expected to be in the period of REER MBI SEERS WEERE
initial application. So far it has concluded that the BEERFE  MHUATERR :

adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the consolidated financial statements
except for the followings:
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30 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2012 (Continued)

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

IFRS 10 replaces the requirements in IAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements
relating to the preparation of consolidated financial
statements and SIC 12 Consolidation — Special
purpose entities. It introduces a single control
model to determine whether an investee should
be consolidated, by focusing on whether the entity
has power over the investee, exposure to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and
the ability to use its power to affect the amount of
those returns.

The application of IFRS 10 is not expected to
change any of the control conclusions reached by
the Group in respect of its involvement with other
entities as at 1 January 2013. However, it may in
the future result in investees being consolidated
which would not have been consolidated under the
Group’s existing policies or vice versa.

IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other
entities

IFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all
the disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s
interests  in  subsidiaries, joint arrangements,
associates and unconsolidated structured entities.
The disclosures required in IFRS 12 are generally
more extensive than those required in the current
standards. The Group may have to make additional
disclosures about its interests in other entities when
the standard is adopted for the first time in 2013.

AMBER ENERGY LIMITED MRH&ERABMRAA
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BE_E—_—_H+=-A=+—HL
FECEME R RERPIERT - 5
RTEANRENTREEE#)

BB i RS R0 RS M
] = |

B B 7% ¥R = HE B B 105R ER (X G B R B
RAEVBHRANBER S ERF27HR
(RERBUVBBRRINEGREZE
CREBEAEFIREH —BFHRENE
BISHRE  -BEP B RS EF1050
SIAE—HZHIRN  UBERKRELQA
ERREEHEE EHREHERBESDS
BREHRIRERNR  2EBERERF
EBAEREsEROER - ANER
BAXEZEZOREBEOES -

BFHRABERM B REENEI0RTE
HNEAEERBE_T—=F—HF—H
SEEMEREGIERNERARRE
HAOEMER o A - BRI EEEBUR
BEAKERABRRIEE HEENEIR
BRATUNAHEE RZTA -

BB R EERFE12FR R EME
RS RE]
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